


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, February 28, 2017 - 7:00pm 
Takiff Center – Community Hall

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order   

II. Roll Call
III. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Minutes of December 7, 2016 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
B. Minutes of January 17, 2017 Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting 
C. Minutes of January 17, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
D. Minutes of January 31, 2017 Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting 
E. Minutes of February 13, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
F. Minutes of February 21, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
G. Approval of Surplus Disposal Ordinance No. 857 
H. Approval of the Bills 

IV. Matters from the Public 
V. Financial Report

VI. Follow up to Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting
VII. Staff Reports 

A. Business
B. Recreation and Facilities 
C. Parks and Maintenance 
D. Marketing and Communications 
E. Safety Committee 

VIII. Executive Director Report 
IX. Action Items 

A. Approval of Glencoe Youth Services Stipend Request 
B. Approval of SNAP Stipend Request 
C. Approval of Glencoe Jr. High Project Stipend Request 
D. Approval of Design Concepts for West Playground 
E. Approval of Design Concepts for Astor Playground 
F. Approval of Resolution No. 858 Repealing Resolution No. 636 and Amending the Glencoe 

Park District Policy on the Sale of Park District Land to a Non-Governmental Entity 
G. Approval of Third Party Construction on Park District Property Policy 
H. Approval of Upgrade IT TSS Plan 
I.    Approval of the Revised Fund Balance Policy 
J.    Approval of Resolution No. 859 to Commit Additional Funds to Master Plan Capital Project 

Fund (69) 
K. Approval for Architectural Services of Wight and Company  

X. Other Business
XI. The Board Will Enter Closed Session to Discuss: 

A. Personnel 6ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
XII. Adjournment 
The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with 
disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or facilities, are asked 
to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Park Commissioners or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are

invited and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with
any questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



 
 

The Board recognizes that these Minutes should have been approved in January and 
the District will commit to approving minutes within OMA Guidelines going forward. 

 
DRAFT 

 
MINUTES OF DECEMBER 7, 2016 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. and roll was called. 
 
Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Andre Lerman, Chair/Commissioner Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR 
Steve Gaines, President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
      Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Commissioners present:   Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
Dudley Onderdonk, Vice President       
Seth Palatnik, Commissioner  
            
Approval of Minutes of the November 15, 2016 Special Projects and Facilities 
Committee:   A motion was made by Commissioner Lerman to approve the minutes of 
the Nov. 15 Special Projects and Committee as presented.  Motion was approved 
by unanimous consent. 
vote taken: 
 AYES:  Brooks, Gaines, Lerman 
 NAYS:   None 
  ABSENT:     None 
 
Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Stefanie Boron, Eileen 
Sirkin 
 
Matters from the Public:  There was no one wishing to address the Committee. 
 
Prospective Landscape Architect Firms:  The District sent out requests for proposals for 
Landscape Architect firms and received five. Executive Director Sheppard and Parks 
Director Leiner interviewed five firms and advanced two firms to be interviewed by the 
Board at this meeting. Fees for their services were in sealed envelopes; based on 
statute the Board may ask only Hitchcock Design Group about fees and not request that 
information from any other firm. 
 
AltaManu gave a presentation and answered staff and Board questions. 
 
The meeting was halted for a five-minute break at 7:39 p.m. 
 
Hitchcock Design Group gave a presentation and answered staff and Board questions.  



 

2 
 

 
 Both firms were compared in detail and discussion ensued.   
 
Chair Lerman recommended, based on discussion of the Committee, for staff to 
negotiate fees with AltaManu to no higher than 12% of the project. If fee terms are 
reached, then staff will negotiate in good faith to get a contract to be approved at the 
January Regular Board meeting. If fees cannot be negotiated in the parameters 
discussed, then AltaManu will be disqualified and staff will negotiate with Hitchcock.  
 
Matters from the Public:  Eileen Sirkin gave her positive view of Hitchcock Design 
Group’s presentation. 
 
Other Business:  There was no other business. 
 
Adjourn: Commissioner Gaines moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:58 p.m. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
                   
 

Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 
 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JANUARY 17, 2017 PERSONNEL AND POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING  
- GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:04 p.m. and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Seth Palatnik, Chair/Commissioner Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Steve Gaines, President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 
       Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation & Fac. 
Commissioners present:   Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
Andre Lerman, Commissioner  Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 
Dudley Onderdonk, Vice President 

 Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman, Ed 
Goodale, Alexandra Greenwald, Kathy Janega, Josh Lutton, David Leibson

Approval of corrected Minutes of the January 3, 2017 Personnel and Policy Committee 
Meeting:  A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve the Minutes of the 
January 3, 2017 Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting as presented. Commissioner 
Palatnik seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Gaines, Palatnik, Brooks (Brooks approved at 6:19 p.m.) 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT: None 

Matters from the Public: Chair Palatnik moved this Agenda Item to follow the Policy 
Discussion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Commissioner Brooks arrived at 6:05 p.m.

Review on Policy on Allowing for Third Party Construction on Park District Land:
Executive Director Sheppard reviewed the new proposed policy with the Board and 
clarified questions along with Director Leiner from the Board. Discussion ensued. 

Commissioner s Brooks and Gaines agreed that this policy should  be advanced to a 
Regular Board Meeting for approval. Chair Palatnik, based on discussion of the 
Committee, directed staff to advance the policy along for Third Party Construction on 
Park District Land for approval at the February Board Meeting. 

Matters from the Public: David Leibson asked for clarification on the policy in regards to 
the difference between not-for-profit and for-profit and also Super Majority in the policy. 

Kathy Janega spoke on not having Super Majority in the policy, Historical Society’s plan 
falls within the new policy, design committee, contracts, construction of improvements 



2

needing a definition, and she believes that the policy needs to have added content to 
include the reservation to amend the policy at any time.

Chair Palatnik forwarded the policy for approval as is with agreement from members 
Brooks and Gaines. 

Since Commissioner Brooks arrived following approval of the Minutes, she did approve 
Minutes of the January 3, 2017 Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting at this time. 

Other Business:  There was no other business. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Palatnik moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:19 p.m. President 
Gaines seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JANUARY 17, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Steve Gaines, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Dudley Onderdonk, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Andre Lerman, Commissioner Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Seth Palatnik, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 

Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman, Ed 
Goodale, Alexandra Greenwald, Kathy Janega, Josh Lutton, David Leibson 

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Onderdonk to approve the 
consent agenda items as presented including Minutes of the October 18, 2016 Finance 
Committee of the Whole meeting, Minutes of the November 15, 2016 Committee of the 
Whole meeting, Minutes of the December 13, 2016 Regular Board Meeting, FY2017/18 
Board Meeting Schedule, and Approval of the Bills. Commissioner Lerman seconded 
the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Brooks, Lerman, Onderdonk, Palatnik, Gaines 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT: None 

Matters from the Public:  There was no one wishing to address the Board.

Financial Report:  Director of Finance/Human Resources Mensinger stated we are ten 
months into the fiscal year. The last two months you will see a decrease in our cash 
payments due to the bond payments that were due December 1. Full-day Kindergarten 
program has had an impact on revenue in Recreation. Director Lushniak and the 
Recreation Team continue to strive to find programming ideas and found revenue in 
new places and are continuing to work on it. Watts is remaining consistent to previous 
years. The Boating and Swimming Beach did very well this year due to the weather and 
improved operations. FY2017/18 Budget Books are to be distributed tomorrow; the 
outlook looks good. 

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports. 
Director Mensinger had nothing to add to her previous report. 

Director Lushniak stated that our winter break programs, basketball camp, and school 
day off program had higher participation than years past, winter session started last 



2

week, planning for the next brochure is in progress, special events coming up were 
described, and Watts Below Zero was well attended despite warm weather. 

Director Leiner is excited to begin collaborating with AltaManu starting with site visits in 
the rain on Monday. This enabled AltaManu to see our parks in the worst shape with 
pooling water and drainage issues; a very educational process for them. Other items 
focused on were replacing lighting with new low energy LED fixtures and invasive 
removal on the bluff. Watts Park asphalt path condition was reviewed. 

Manager Maassen explained that for Watts Below Zero we purchased a custom Snap 
Chat filter for the day, geographically targeted, and only during the time of the event. It 
was a fun experiment to reach the age group who attended the event and we will 
continue to utilize that feature at future big events. The District’s involvement in Unplug 
Illinois, a state-wide campaign, has brought the attention of IPRA to the District’s efforts 
and asked Manager Maassen to be part of the social media team for the upcoming year 
as they promote it to the public and also using the Park District is a shining star to be 
discussed during Conference at a session. 

Leiner stated we have not accepted the clock yet, the faces are showing different times 
and it is being worked on. 

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard stated that Distinguished 
Accreditation is a two-year project and reviewed major goals. The District will be 
applying for NRPA’s Gold Medal in February; the video will also be used for District 
advertising. Benefits of both projects for the community was discussed.

Based on feedback at Committee meetings, staff will begin sharing reports on specific 
topics similar to the Annual Beach Report at Regular Board Meetings monthly. 

Executive Director Sheppard reviewed the Board Calendar of upcoming projects and 
approved the date change of the February Board Meeting to February 28, 2017. 

Action Items: 

Approval of Policy on Communications: Electronic Devices Policy for Board Members:
A motion was made by Commissioner Palatnik to approve the Policy on 
Communications: Electronic Devices Policy for Board Members as presented. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Brooks, Lerman, Onderdonk, Palatnik, Gaines 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Approval of Policies on Transgender Issues:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Brooks to approve the Policies on Transgender Issues as presented. Commissioner 
Lerman seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Brooks, Lerman, Onderdonk, Palatnik, Gaines 
 NAYS:  None



3

 ABSENT: None 

Other Business:  There was no other business. 

Adjourn to Closed Session: At 7:39 p.m., Commissioner Lerman moved to adjourn into 
closed session to discuss property as mandated by Section 2.06. 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(5)
Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Brooks, Lerman, Onderdonk, Palatnik, Gaines 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Return to Open Session:  Commissioner Palatnik moved to return to open session at 
8:31 p.m. Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 

Action taken, if any, from Executive Session: There was no action taken during or 
following Executive Session. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Palatnik moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:32 p.m. 
Commissioner Lerman seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



  DRAFT 

MINUTES OF JANUARY 31, 2017 FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. and the roll was called.

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, Chair/Treasurer  Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Seth Palatnik, President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Dudley Onderdonk, Vice President Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Andre Lerman, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 

Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant

Members of the public in attendance:  Stefanie Boron, Audra Donnelly, Dan Dorfman, 
Fiona Jessup, Debbie Jha, Josh Lutton, Eddie Simon 

Matters from the Public:  There was no one wishing to address the Committee. 

Budget Review:  Commissioner Palatnik arrived at 6:35 p.m. 

Director Mensinger reviewed the First Draft Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 
document in full detail. 

As of February 28, 2017, the projected fund balance in the Corporate Fund of $2,465,772 
will meet the reserve guideline of 50% of operating expenditures and the Recreation Fund 
of $3,765,979 will meet the reserve guideline of 50% of operating expenditures, as do all 
minor funds. The Proposed First Draft Budget that was reviewed and discussed by the 
committee is attached to these minutes including a memo with a detailed overview of the 
fiscal outlook of the Park District. Given these fund balance levels, a transfer of funds to 
future Master Plan projects will be re-evaluated after the annual audit is completed and 
presented to the Board in June. 

The highest ten priced capital projects in Fund 65 and Fund 69 was reviewed in detail along 
with the Three-Year Capital Plan and facility projects. 

The discussion on the 2017 salary merit pool included a brief review of the 2014 HayGroup 
salary study. Based on comparable park district increases for competitive hiring, staff 
recommended a 3% merit increase based on individual annual evaluation. The Executive 
Director also has discretion for additional bonuses in situations for high performers during 
extreme projects where hours and high performance were required and executed.

Following Committee discussion, Chair Brooks directed Executive Director Sheppard to 
move forward with the 3% merit pool increase. 

Director Lushniak reviewed the Program Price Guidelines and Fee Comparison Table in 
additional detail. 



Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting                                                  January 31, 2017 
Glencoe Park District                                      Page 2 

.

After a final review from the Committee, Chair Brooks directed Executive Director Sheppard 
to bring the Approval Draft FY2017/18 Budget for approval at the March Regular Board 
meeting. No action was taken, changes will be made as needed in the Budget Approval 
Draft on the agenda for approval at the March 21, 2017 Regular Board Meeting. 

GYS and GJHP Stipend Request: Eddie Simon, Executive Director of GYS and Audra 
Donnelly, Executive Director, and Fiona Jessup, Program Director of GJHP gave 
presentations regarding their stipend requests. Discussion ensued. Chair Brooks with the 
approval of the Committee asked staff to forward the stipend requests for approval at the 
February Regular Board meeting. 

Other:  There was no other business. 

Adjourn:  Chair Brooks moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:33 p.m. Commissioner Gaines 
seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 13, 2017 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:37 p.m. and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Andre Lerman, Chair/Commissioner Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
       Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Commissioners present:  Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
Seth Palatnik, Commissioner  

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Nicole Batson, Josephine 
Bellalta, Stefanie Boron, John McManus, Jerry Pilipowicz, David Rongey, Catherine 
Wang 

Presentation on West Playground Conceptual Designs:  Chair Lerman and Executive 
Director Sheppard introduced Josephine Bellalta and John McManus of AltaManu, Jerry 
Pilipowicz of SMP Group Civil Engineering, Catherine Wang, Superintendent of District 
#35, and David Rongey, Principal of West School. AltaManu presented design concepts 
for both West Park attached to these minutes. Discussion ensued. 

Matters from the Public: Nicole Batson questioned if a tot playground was needed at 
West School.  Executive Director Sheppard responded that the playground was for the 
entire community not just school age children and that the neighborhood surrounding 
the school tends to have younger families with toddler aged children. 

Stephanie Boron indicated that she liked the designs. 

Presentation on Astor Place Playground Conceptual Designs:  Director Leiner gave a 
synopsis of the park and introduced Josephine Bellalta and John McManus of 
AltaManu, Jerry Pilipowicz of SMP Group Civil Engineering who gave the presentation. 
Discussion ensued.

Matters from the Public: Nicole Batson commented on park-residence barriers and that 
the designs are wonderful. Stefanie Boron commented positively on the boogie board 
and age-appropriateness. She would like to additional shade, more playfulness, and to 
add more safety features including a fence. 

Chair Lerman directed staff, based on discussion of the Committee, to add design 
concepts to the February 21 Special Projects and Facilities Committee meeting agenda 
for additional community input before advancing to the February 28 Regular Board 
meeting for approval. 



2

AltaManu & SMP Group exited the meeting. 

Other Business:  Executive Director Sheppard reviewed Takiff parking and indicated 
that during capital project planning they did not know at that time that the skate park 
would need to be removed. Staff is recommending to the Board to add additional funds 
to the budget so that the Board can consider adding parking in the Parks Department 
and where the skate park was located. Executive Director Sheppard indicated that the 
Special Projects Committee would have time to vet the idea in committee before 
approving the expenditure of any funds.

Adjourn: Commissioner Lerman moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:08 p.m. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 21, 2017 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Andre Lerman, Chair/Commissioner Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Steve Gaines, President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
      Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Commissioners present:   Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
Seth Palatnik, Commissioner  Paul Goedjen, Takiff Facility Manager 

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Stefanie Boron, 
Alexandra Greenwald, Josh Lutton 

Discussion on West Playground:  Executive Director Sheppard led the discussion with 
an update since the last Committee meeting. Display boards of West Park Designs 
were shared with West School. The School Board, PTO, students, and staff feedback 
was positive. The designs have been added to a new special projects page on the 
District’s website. Letters were hand-delivered to all neighbors, with one call back 
voicing concern about noise and parking. 

Approval of the designs (at a Regular Board meeting) would include the concept of the 
5-12 play structure and the discovery area. The tree theatre is not in the scope of the 
District’s budget and would need to be funded by donation, school, or PTO. It will be an 
add alternate in the bid. Drainage and field use were reviewed. Discussion ensued. 

Committee Chair Recommendation: Chair Lerman directed staff, based on discussion of 
the committee, to advance West Park Playground design concepts for approval at the 
February Regular Board Meeting as presented. 

Discussion on Astor Place Playground:  Executive Director Sheppard indicated that 
President Gaines, Director Leiner, and she met with a neighbor of the park.  The 
neighbor asked if the Park District would consider flipping the playground and swing set 
back to the original location and setting the footprint closer to the road. The neighbor’s 
current view is not obstructed and by making these few changes, it would remain so. 
For playground safety, a split rail fence and low bushes along the boundaries of the 
park was discussed. Executive Sheppard showed a new design for the sand box and 
the Board like the sand box concept. The committee stated that they preferred option 2 
of the play structure as well as supporting the idea of reversing the orientation of the 
play equipment if the architects can make it work. Discussion ensued. 



2

Committee Chair Recommendation: Chair Lerman directed staff, based on discussion of 
the committee, to advance the proposed Astor Park Playground design concept option 2 
for approval at the February Regular Board Meeting as presented with the addition of 
the wishbone sandbox concept. 

Matters from the Public:  There was no one in attendance wishing to address the Board. 

Discussion on Proposed Fitness Area (Location, Equipment, and Facility 
Improvements): Executive Director Sheppard led the discussion with background on the 
need for a fitness area. One of the top needs during the Master Plan survey was a 
fitness area. Location, relocation of programs, visits to other park district fitness areas, 
scope of construction, locker rooms, and equipment were reviewed. The fitness area 
would be targeted to open in November with a soft opening in October. 

Mike Munson from Direct Fitness and Debby Jones from Life Fitness gave 
presentations including equipment information, buying versus leasing, lifespan, and 
room layout. 

Director Leiner sent out RFP’s for an architect specializing in small scale fitness areas. 
Staff recommended the District select Wight and Company for design services for the 
fitness area, locker rooms, and lowering the front desk. 

Committee Chair Recommendation: Chair Lerman directed staff, based on discussion of 
the Committee, for staff to advance Precor fitness equipment for future approval at a 
Regular Board Meeting. 

Committee Chair Recommendation: Chair Lerman directed staff, based on discussion of 
the Committee, to advance for approval, the Professional Services of Wight and 
Company with Bob Ijams as our contact person, for designs services for approval at the 
February Regular Board Meeting. 

Budget and Capital Projects Fund 69 was discussed in regards to adding funds for a 
revitalization and ADA upgrades of the current shower and addition of a second shower 
room. Estimated costs for all options was reviewed. The Board discussed doing the 
designs of the current and second shower to get an idea of the expense. In addition, 
they would add money in the budget as a placeholder should the Board want to add a 
second shower room. The committee agreed the revitalization and ADA upgrades were 
a good idea for the current shower area. Discussion ensued. 

Matters from the Public:  Stefanie Boron and Josh Lutton shared their thoughts on 
fitness area bathrooms and showers. 

Committee Chair Recommendation: Chair Lerman directed staff, based on the 
discussion of the Committee, to increase the fitness area construction/equipment 
FY2017/18 approval budget from $310,000 to $460,000 with final approval of 
expenditures by the Board once bids are submitted. 



3

Other Business:  Director Leiner reported that there is damage to the playground 
caused by the decay of wood at Vernon and Jefferson. This resulted in fencing off the 
playground until further evaluation by PDRMA this week.  Director Leiner will know more 
about the status of this playground by next week’s Board meeting. 

Stefanie Boron commented on the fun features of the playground and is pleased the 
District is adding the sand feature. 

Josh Lutton commented that Everyly Wildflower Sanctuary needs a layer of wood chips. 
Director Leiner stated that is slated for spring. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Lerman moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:20 p.m. which 
passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE No. 857

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING AS SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR OTHER CONVEYANCE OR 
DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 WHEREAS, the  Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois (“Park District”) owns 
personal property used in connection with the operation of the Park District and described 
as follows:

Asset Tag  Description      Serial Number 
420006210010 Takiff Replace Skate Park Half Pipe  N/A 
420006210019 Takiff Reconstruct Skate Park Center Ramp N/A 
420006280018 Takiff Skateboard Park    N/A 
A20040024  Takiff Ramp, Skate Park    N/A 
420007010023 SUV - Jeep Cherokee    N/A 
420007010025 Truck Pickup - Chevrolet C1500 w/Lift Gate N/A 
420007010026 Truck Pickup - Chevrolet S-10   N/A 
00803999A  Astor Place Playstructure    N/A 

hereinafter known as the “Property”; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8-22 of the Park District Code (70 ILCS 1205/8-
22)(“Code”), every park district is authorized to sell or convey any personal property that 
in the opinion of three-fifths of the members of the Board of Park Commissioners then 
holding office is no longer necessary, useful to, or for the best interests of the park 
district, in any manner that they may designate and with or without advertising; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners of the Park District (“Board”) has 
reviewed a staff report finding that the Property is no longer necessary, useful to or for 
the best interests of the Park District and recommending to sell or otherwise convey in 
the following manner:  to trade, otherwise convey, or dispose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED by the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The Board finds that all of the recitals contained in the preamble to 
this Ordinance are true and correct and does hereby incorporate them in this Ordinance 
by this reference. 

Section 2.  The Board finds that the Property is no longer necessary, useful to or 
for the best interests of the Park District and declares it to be for the best interests of the 
Park District and its residents to dispose of in the following manner:  by trade in subject 
to the execution by the purchaser of an appropriate instrument whereby the purchaser 
acknowledges that the purchaser is purchasing the Property used, as is, without any 
warranties of any kind whatsoever, assumes all liabilities in connection with the 
Purchaser’s use of the Property, and releases, indemnifies and holds harmless the Park 



District and its park commissioners, officers and employees against and from any and 
all such liabilities or by trade in, or disposal. 

Section 3.  The Board authorizes and directs the Executive Director of the Park 
District to take such action necessary to sell, or otherwise convey or dispose of the 
Property as herein authorized. 

Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption as 
provided by law. 

Adopted this 28th day of February 2017 by the affirmative roll call vote of three-fifths of 
the members of the Board of Park Commissioners as follows: 

Ayes:    
Nays:
Abstentions:
Absent:                                                                                                

 Steve Gaines, President 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
 Glencoe Park District 

 ATTEST: 

 Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
       Glencoe Park District 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of Ordinance 
No. 857:

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING AS SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE, CONVEYANCE OR DISPOSAL 

OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 28th

day of February 2017. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 28th day of February 2017. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL]









































V. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
January 2017

As of As of As of
1/31/2015 1/31/2016 1/31/2017

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 3,298,718 3,507,262 3,235,921
Wages (480,496) (544,259) (555,810)
Contractual (1,218,502) (1,294,369) (1,159,031)
Supplies (81,720) (82,491) (89,977)
     Net Surplus 1,518,000 1,586,143 1,431,103

Day Care Department
Revenue 728,050 725,730 818,746
Expense (557,938) (578,043) (638,211)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 170,112 147,687 180,535

Beach Department
Revenue 324,035 259,370 324,303
Expense (323,099) (233,456) (259,797)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 936 25,914 64,506

Boating Department
Revenue N/A 72,272 107,008
Expense N/A (97,390) (100,234)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) N/A (25,118) 6,774

Beach/Boating Department Total: 71,280
(for comparision to prior years)

Watts Department
Revenue 100,473 90,786 123,174
Expenses (187,286) (192,716) (186,893)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (86,813) (101,930) (63,719) (1)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 23,510 26,162 28,518
Expense (868,725) (915,167) (970,864)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (845,215) (889,005) (942,346)

Parks Department
Revenue 7,427 16,880 31,599
Expense (853,152) (873,043) (916,079)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (845,725) (856,163) (884,480)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 1,160,041 1,154,235 1,211,004
Expenses (1,726,188) (2,236,070) (1,861,240)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (566,147) (1,081,835) (650,236)

This year, all monie due were received in January.
(1) Last year, final payment for Winnetka Hockey was not received until February.



VI. Follow up to Finance Committee of the
Whole Meeting

Refer to Budget and Documents under Action Items H, I, J

in addition to the document below. 

Glencoe Park District

February 28 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District
Summary of Proposed FY17/18 Items since First Draft Discussion
February 21,2017

       First     Approval
Account Number       Draft         Draft   Difference  Explanation

Revenues:
69‐00‐000‐4810 Transfer from Corporate Fund 300,000 600,000 300,000 2/28/17 Commitment Resolution, per Board
69‐00‐000‐4825 Transfer from Recreation Fund 1,000,000 1,100,000 100,000 2/28/17 Commitment Resolution, per Board

Expenses:
69‐00‐000‐5320 Architectual Services 25,000 100,000 75,000 Addl monies to plan for FY18/19 Projects/Start earlier
69‐00‐000‐5503 Berlin Park Machinery 0 40,000 40,000 Unused portion of Berlin Donation for specialized equipmt
69‐00‐000‐5536 Fitness Area Project‐Takiff 310,000 460,000 150,000 Board Concensus at 2/21 Special Projects Committee Mtg
69‐00‐000‐5531 Parking Project‐Takiff 260,000 600,000 340,000 Board Concensus at 2/21 Special Projects Committee Mtg

65‐00‐017‐5563 Retaining Wall Repairs‐Lakefront/Beach 10,000 18,000 8,000 Additional damage to beach stairs with recent rain storm

45‐00‐000‐5321 Consulting‐Safety 0 15,000 15,000 Required Lead Testing for all facilities

10‐12‐000‐5350 Maintenance Services 7,500 16,000 8,500 Increase in Safety Kleen Biohazard services($3500)
Added Environmental Testing ($5,000)

10‐12‐000‐5353 Disposal/Portolet Services 22,000 24,500 2,500 Park Garage Refuse Increase based on actuals
10‐12‐000‐5348 Shared Services‐Contractual Mowing 21,505 16,000 (5,505) Increase per RFP Results‐Flecks
10‐12‐000‐5349 Contractual‐Hort/Landscaping 91,776 121,800 30,024 Increase per RFP Results‐Flecks
10‐12‐000‐5585 Pavement and Site Development 62,200 67,200 5,000 Added Drinking Fountain with Bottle Fill

10‐13‐000‐5588 Building Improvements‐Watts 3,500 6,000 2,500 Added Drinking Fountain with Bottle Fill

25‐27‐000‐5210 Dedicated TV/Internet‐Fitness Area 0 1,200 1,200 Added 6 mos cost for Direct TV/Internet

25‐00‐000‐5588 Building Improvements‐Takiff 9,500 15,000 5,500 Added 2 Drinking Fountains with Bottle Fill
25‐00‐000‐5484 Supplies‐Electrical/Bulbs‐Takiff 4,800 8,300 3,500 Added Solar Light Repairs

Additional Total Expenses 681,219



VII. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

February 2017 

FY2017/18 Budget 
The First Draft of the proposed FY2017/18 Budget was completed and distributed to the Board 
of Park Commissioners on January 18.  It was discussed in detail at the January 31 Finance 
Committee of the Whole Meeting.  All changes from that meeting, as well as more refined 
projected current year amounts, will be reflected in the Approval Draft of the budget which is 
tentatively scheduled to be approved at the regular meeting on March 21.  After the required 
period for public inspection, the Budget and Appropriations Ordinance will then be approved at 
the regular meeting on April 18. 

FY2016/17 Audit 
Yet another fiscal year end is right around the corner on February 28.  As such, staff has begun 
to prepare the annual audit confirmation letters, as well as the many audit schedules required as 
part of the District’s annual audit.  Staff also met with managing partner, Ron Amen, on January 
24 to discuss pre-audit planning. Closing journal entries will occur in early March. The auditors 
are scheduled for preliminary fieldwork on March 28 and final fieldwork on the week of April 
24-28.

Annual Staff Performance Evaluations/Goals 
As we approach the end of the current fiscal year, staff has been busy preparing annual 
performance evaluations on all full-time staff, as well as many of the permanent part-time staff. 
Salary increases are based solely on merit, and will be effective March 1, 2017. Staff has also 
been busy preparing annual goals for FY2017/18. 

Illinois Parks and Recreation Annual Conference (January 19-20) 
I attended the annual conference this year downtown at the Hilton Hotel.  In addition to the 
numerous networking opportunities with other professionals and board members, and to visiting 
the very large exhibit hall, I earned .5 continuing education units (CEUs) toward the renewal of 
my professional certification (2.0 units are required every two years).  I attended sessions on the 
following topics: 

Legal/Legislative Update – Part 1 
Legal/Legislative Update – Part 2 
HR Documentation & Personnel Files 
FLSA: Where Are We Today? 
DCFS: Licensing Program 

ACA Reporting 
Staff continues to work through the second year for the process of creating and issuing the 1094-
C and 1095-C Forms, which are required to be sent to employees and IRS for ACA reporting 
purposes to show proof of coverage of health insurance.

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/Human Resources 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

February 2017 

Recreation Department Report: Michael Lushniak 
The Recreation Team continues to ensure high quality school year programs while getting ready 
for summer. In the past month, staff has engaged the planning process for camps, as well as 
worked with Erin to market the early camp registration discount.  Staff has also completed the 
spring and summer brochure which will be delivered to residents this week. The beach is 
beginning to come to the forefront as work at the boat house is underway and staff is already 
planning for summer operations, pass sales, and the implementation of the new beach pass 
system. Chris P. and I have met with AYSO and GBA to renew affiliate agreements for the 
upcoming spring.   

Members of the Recreation Team have also been busy working with other departments and other 
groups within the community. Four members of the Recreation Team are now certified as 
CPR/First Aid instructors. Internal classes are scheduled for early childhood teachers, parks staff, 
administrative staff, and recreation staff to certify, or recertify everyone in CPR and first aid. We 
are also offering external classes that are open to the community. Liz Visteen and I met with the 
Glencoe Library about partnership opportunities for summer programs and events. We also met 
with the Village to discuss planning for our new youth obstacle course race, the Great Mud Run.

The Glencoe Park District has applied for a grant for the Kid’s Club program through the Illinois 
Association of Park Districts. Staff is hopeful to receive funding from this grant that will allow 
the before and after school program to offer new ways to bring health and wellness to the 
forefront for these participants.

Finally, planning continues for a number of very exciting projects.  Staff has been transitioning 
boater registration to be available online. Simultaneously, recreation staff is working with 
customer service and business operations to ensure logistics are in order to begin selling beach 
passes in March using RecTrac. Planning also continues for the fitness area as staff continues to 
research and plan for the new fitness center as well as focusing on the relocation of current users 
of the Aiken Activity room.

Early Childhood:  Naomi Garvett & Amanda Michael
Children’s Circle enrollment is currently at 42 children. There are three new infants starting in 
the Jellyfish room next month and only one full time spot available in Starfish and one part time 
spot available in the Belugas classroom. 

On Saturday, January 28, Early Childhood staff hosted the annual Messy Morning Celebration 
with a Preschool Open House. Families joined teachers for a morning of squishing, squeezing, 
and trying all the things you would never do at home!  There were multiple new families that 
came to learn about Early Childhood programs! There were at least two new enrollments from 
this event.  



Four-year-old students in the Early Learning Center program celebrated Chinese New Year with 
families on Friday, January 27. Children participated in a parade, songs, and a family feast. 

Early Learning Center registration for the 2017-2018 is now available. We expect many more 
registrations between now and the start of the school year.

ELC Enrollment 2016-2017 (Total) 2015-2016 (as of 2/7/16)
2’s classes 24 12 
3’s classes 30 19 
4’s classes 27 35 
Total 81 66 

Registration also began for Little Bears and Kinder Korner camps on November 30, 2016. 
Current summer enrollments are trending to be the same or better than last summer.  

Camp Enrollment Teddies Pandas Koalas Kinder Korner 
Enrolled 4 M/W/F 

4 T/Th 
9 M/W/F 

5 M-F 
31 50 Opened 3rd Section 

Due to Large Waitlist 
Max Enrollment 15 16 40 60 

Athletics, Sports and Teen Camp:  Chris Pietrini 
Much of January was spent working on the spring/summer brochure and planning a number of 
new programs. They include spring basketball clinics, a functional sports training class for youth, 
parent/child SNAG golf, and Men’s 50 and Over Softball. 

Staff has been very active onsite at both house and travel basketball games. The travel teams 
have put in a lot of time practicing and improvements can be seen each week as they participate 
in tournaments in the area. House league also continues to be a strong program as the season is 
now in full swing.  Feedback has been overwhelmingly positive for the new online scheduling 
website that is being used as well as the new reversible jerseys. 

Staff met with the Park District of Highland Park and Deerfield Park District to ensure that 
cooperative basketball programs have been running smoothly. It has been very beneficial 
working with other park districts at the older levels to ensure a variety of opponents for Glencoe 
Park District teams.  Chris will be meeting with these two agencies again after the season is over 
to better align schedules and continue to focus on program improvements.  

SNAG golf also received a great addition from the parks department. Chris Leiner and his staff 
constructed a 9-hole mini golf course that will be utilized by this program. Staff and participants 
alike are thrilled with the addition of this equipment for the program.   

Arts and Youth: Stephani Briskman
On January 14 and 15, Broadway Bound performed Annie Jr. at the Winnetka Community 
House. There were 456 tickets sold online and 48 tickets sold at the door. The performances 
clearly demonstrated the student’s hard work at memorizing their parts and lines. The set design 



was spectacular, showing how hard the teachers work on these productions. The spring 
Broadway Bound musical is Lion King Jr. which will be a first for the Glencoe Park District. 

On January 16, the 28 children registered for the School Day Off program participated in Watts 
Below Zero ice skating, dancing, and making crafts at Watts Ice Center. On February 17, the 37 
children registered took part in our Cupcake Wars. The kids divided into two teams, created team 
names and colors, decorated chef’s hats, and baked and decorated their cupcakes. At the end of 
the day, a winner was chosen and the children got to take home their chef hats as a prize. On 
February 20, the 30 children traveled to Blast Zone where they climbed a 20-foot tall monkey 
tower, raced Turbo Tubs, and shot bazooka ball blasters. Upon their return to Takiff, the children 
enjoyed the warm weather and played outside until pick up. 

During January and February, PM Kids Club participants enjoyed skating at Watts. They were 
able to enjoy ice skating 3 days a week on Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays. This has been 
a nice addition to the Kid’s Club program due to its relocation to Watts as the children have been 
able to get a unique offering of skating that many other after school programs do not offer.  

Early-bird registration for Sun Fun and Camp Adventure began November 30 and registration is 
ongoing. Staff expects a spike in registration prior to the February 29 early bird deadline and are 
continuing to market the new structure of clubs added for Camp Adventure to aid in registration. 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
Watts Below Zero took place on Monday, January 16 at Watts Ice Center. There was a great 
turnout for the event despite the rainy/wet conditions. The event included a DJ, which was 
stationed inside, open skate, carnival games on the studio rink, broom ball, ice painting, ice 
sculpting demo, crafts, guest appearances from Queen Elsa and Princess Anna (Frozen), and 
more. L.L. Bean was also on site to demonstrate proper snow shoe fitting and how to use. 
Overall, it was a great event and turnout.  

Paint & Sip took place on January 20 for adults over 21 only. This was an event where 
individuals were led by the Glencoe Park District painting instructor, Rino Liberatore, to paint 
their own masterpiece. Participants had a great time while enjoying some beverages, as this event 
encouraged participants to bring their own.

Teen Ice Night was held Friday, January 27 from 6:30p-8:30p. The event had a tremendous 
turnout with 67 teens. The 5th-8th graders enjoyed open skate, broomball, hot chocolate, pizza, 
and s’mores by the fire. The District partnered with Glencoe Junior High Project for this event.

The Daddy Daughter Dance took place on Sunday, February 12. Forty-nine couples and an 
additional 9 daughters registered for the event. Participants enjoyed a catered dinner from 
Mariano’s, a live DJ, green-screen photo booth, and special appearances from Disney princesses 
Belle and Sofia the First. The event was a hit for both the Dads and their dates! 

Upcoming special events include another Teen Ice Night on February 24, Teddy Bear Picnic on 
March 4, Sculpt & Sip on March 10, Family Fun Fest on March 12, and Teen Open Mic Night 
on March 17.



Winter Event Attendance 2017 2016 
Jan 16 – Watts Below Zero ~250 ~250 

Jan 20 – Paint & Sip 7 N/A 
Jan 27 – Teen Ice Night 37 25 

Feb 12 – Daddy Daughter 107 102 

The Ceramics program continues to show a strong following with the majority of youth classes 
full and adult classes holding steady. Several adult programs ran and/or will run this session 
including Adult & Pediatric CPR/AED, Dog Obedience, and Ballroom Dance.    

Winter Program Attendance  2017 2016 
Adult Ceramics 14 14 
Youth Ceramics 59 58 
Teen Programs 10 6 

Other Adult Programs 24 3 

Takiff Center/Fitness: Paul Goedjen 
During January, Glencoe Park District received a demo Precor treadmill from Direct Fitness. The 
demo treadmill is available for staff to test and run on, as the model is identical to the one that is 
listed in the proposal from Direct Fitness for equipment in the new fitness area. Staff is also 
expecting a demo treadmill from Life Fitness.  Staff has also been very busy visiting other fitness 
centers on the North Shore to get ideas and compare amenities of other facilities.    

GJK held their annual winter benefit at the Takiff Center on February 11 followed by the 
District’s annual Daddy Daughter Dance on February 12. This was a very busy weekend for Park 
District staff at Takiff Center. The maintenance staff was focused on quick clean ups and set ups 
as well as keeping up with the normal building usage.  

Paul visited Gurnee Park District in February to visit and tour their Hunt Club and FitNation 
facilities and also to attend the IPRA Facility Management section meeting which focused on 
fitness operations. 

Rentals and birthday parties continue their consistent improvement over last year. Staff is excited 
to announce that their fiscal year goal of increasing revenue by 5% in this area has been met. 

Type January February (as of 2/14) 
2015 2016 2015 2016 

Birthday Parties $1,680.00 $4,042.50 $2,757.00 $3,587.50 
Facility Rentals $8,380.66 $10,608.31 $11,026.41 $11,176.65 
Total $10,060.66 $14,650.81 $13,783.41 $14,764.15 
Difference $4,590.16 $980.74 
*February’s numbers are tentative and will go up by the end of the month 



Beach and Watts: Bobby Collins 
Watts season continues along with operational numbers looking very strong.  Public skates, 
parties, ice rentals, and open hockey have all met or exceeded last year’s marks.  Staff continues 
to take a proactive approach of facility management focusing on revenue collection, safety, and 
customer service.  Staff has been very focused on keeping ice quality at the highest level.  For 
the majority of the season, ice quality has been excellent; however with recent warm 
temperatures and some electrical issues with rink equipment, staff has had to increase their focus 
in this area.  As of Sunday, February 19, the rink officially closed for the season.  With multiple 
days of temperatures in the high 60’s and high temperatures predicted to continue through the 
week, the rink was unable to hold a sheet of ice.

Pass & Admission Revenue (as of 1/31) 2017 2016 2015 
Resident Passes $9,927 $6,813 $9,125 

Nonresident Passes $658 $798 $675 
Open Hockey/Scrub $8,180 $5,750 $4,059 

Hockey Passes $3,380 $2,145 $1,874 
Daily Admissions $12,615 $10,043 $12,337 

Staff continues to work hard on building strong Learn to Skate and hockey programs. On 
Sunday, February 26 a team of our young Watts hockey participants are skating at the 
intermission of a Blackhawks game at the United Center. The skaters are very excited and 
coaches have scheduled extra practices in February to improve our performance on the ice. 
Enrollment continues to be robust for both hockey and skating classes although slightly below 
2015/16 due to the elimination of Kinderblades due to full day Kindergarten. 

Program Enrollment Revenue 
(as of 12/31) 

2017 2016
Revenue Revenue 

Youth Skating $14,484 $9,972 
Youth Hockey $6,578 $4,828 

Kinderblades - $3,649 
ISI Mini Session 

(combined with Youth Skating 2016) - $4,019 

Total $21,062 $22,468

Submitted by: 
Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation and Facilities 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

February 2017 
Administrative 
I have continued to work with AltaManu relating to West Park and Astor Park. I completed a 
competitive quotation process for surveying services for 2017 Master Plan projects. In 
preparation for next season, I wrote and let a bid for landscaping maintenance and labor and 
completed an RFP for architectural services related to the conversion of the fitness center. I 
attended the annual IPRA Conference and Exhibit Hall. I have begun the process of preparing 
the Automated Building System upgrade for the Takiff HVAC system. 
Grounds/Horticulture
The horticulture crew has continued to perform dormant pruning throughout the District. A 
major emphasis was placed on the bluff at Glencoe Beach. A large number of shrubs were 
pruned and a rotted mulberry tree was removed. A large scale ash tree removal was coordinated 
between the Village and Park District for the property running along the Green Bay Trail in 
Shelton Park. Additionally, the greenhouses are being prepared for the spring season. 
Parks Maintenance & Construction 
With the light snow this winter, we have seen an increase in passive park use. Residents continue 
to use the parks even though the weather is poor resulting in trash removal and general park 
grooming still requiring priority. Staff has continued to balance seasonal tasks with routine 
maintenance such as trash removal, snow removal, park grooming, and playground inspections. 
Parks staff recently completed a much needed update of the carpenter shop in the Parks 
Department. Staff worked to custom build a 9 hole miniature golf course for use in future 
outdoor special events.
Facilities 
Staff has continued to perform off season work in the facilities. At Takiff Center, staff completed 
painting in hallways, staff offices, and program rooms and made repairs to several automatic 
doors, exterior lights, and lockers. 
Staff has begun spring preparations at the boating beach. The inside of the facility has been 
painted and old storage shelving removed.
We are awaiting the final time set on the Takiff Center clock and following certification the 
project will be completed.  
Athletic
We have begun identifying athletic turf areas which we will target for repair prior to the next 
outdoor sports season. 
Equipment
Staff has begun servicing the small engine equipment in preparation for the spring 2017 season. 
In addition, tractor implements have been serviced, cleaned, and painted.
Personnel
No Report. 
Shared Services 
The Village of Glencoe has continued to support the Park District by providing rock salt for use 
on our parking lots. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District 
Marketing/Communications Report 

February 21 Board Meeting 

Social Media/Email 
We ended the month of January with 44,861 Facebook impressions (in 2016, we ended the 
month with 24,935 impressions). We now have 1154 followers on Facebook, 709 followers on 
Twitter and 621 followers on Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 1230 followers and Watts Ice 
Center has 155 followers on Facebook.

We sent out several targeted email blasts, primarily focused on special events.  

Time Sent Campaign Name Total
Sent

Open
Rate Click Through Rate

Mon, Jan 23, 2017 9:30 AM Flash Adult Class Sale 4531 31.10% 5.50%

Sat, Jan 21, 2017 12:00 AM Messy Morning 529 37.70% 1.00%

Sat, Jan 14, 2017 10:03 AM Watts Below Zero
Reminder 4533 26.90% 7.80%

Mon, Jan 9, 2017 10:10 AM Watts Below Zero 2017 4539 27.90% 5.10%

Thu, Jan 5, 2017 11:27 AM Exploration Station 529 54.90% 8.60%

Special Events 
I worked closely with our Recreation Team to market Watts Below Zero, Messy Morning, 
Blackhawks Night, and the new infant room. For each event, I created flyers, website graphics, 
posters, event signage as well as email blasts, social media posts, media pitches.  

Spring/Summer Guide 
This month, I focused primarily on creating our Spring/Summer Guide. I worked closely with the 
Recreation Team to design, edit, and prepare the guide for print. The publication will be in 
mailboxes the last week of February.   

Glencoe Quarterly 
The next issue of Glencoe Quarterly will be published the first week of March. The Park 
District’s section will contain information on adult programming, updates on construction 
projects, as well as information on camp registration, Beach, and details about upcoming special 
events.

IPRA Conference 
I chaired the Judge Recruitment for IPRA Conference’s Agency Showcase. I recruited and 
coordinated scheduling for 30 professionals that work in graphic design, marketing, advertising, 
and public relations fields (not in the parks and recreation industry). 

Submitted by: 
Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing and Communications











SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, February 15, 2017 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:08 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Chris Leiner, Carol Mensinger, Mike Lushniak, Liz Visteen, Paul Goedjen, Naomi Garvett, 
and Lorise Weil.  Absent:  Lisa Sheppard. 

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety Committee Minutes from January 18, 2017 were reviewed and accepted.   

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported that there was one employee incident and five other non-
reportable minor accident/incident reports.   

4. Open Claims:  Carol reported that there were three new property claims, two at Watts and one at the Beach.  

5. Carry Over Items:  

a) Naomi asked if Tricia needs to bring the back-pack every time there is a fire drill.  Chris stated that he 
is going to purchase a storage container from Home Depot, where all of the blankets and back-pack 
items can be stored outside.  This will be done so that these items don’t have to be carried outside 
each time we have to exit the building as a result of a drill or an actual incident.  The items in the 
storage container will be accessible, via a combination lock.   

b) Paul mentioned that once the fire alarm goes off (during a drill) you can come back into the building, 
i.e., you don’t have to wait for him to call you on your cell phone.  

c) Carol touched upon the PDRMA award and asked for some ideas on how the award can be 
distributed to staff, e.g., lunch, safety day and lunch (with or without vendors), massages, etc. 

d) Lorise also asked about the AED doors, which ring a local alarm, as well as our alarm company.  
When sounded, this local alarm would hopefully alert someone to call 911.  Chris asked Paul if he 
could please cancel the AED doors from auto-dialing our alarm company, as this additional alarm is 
not really needed.   

   
6. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information as requested.  Carol sent out a list of expired COIs that need to be updated.  She stated that this 
list should be updated on a monthly basis.  Chris asked everyone to make sure that every COI is updated on 
the P:Drive.

7. New Items:   

a) Per Chris, sign-in sheets for every Safety Committee Meeting are now required.   
b) When the building is closed from August 21 thru August 25, 2017, Chris will also be scheduling a test 

to check that the intercom system, the area of rescue buttons, and the outdoor emergency buttons by 
the ELC wing are all working.   

c) Carol asked Chris about lead testing.  Chris stated that an outside firm will be testing all water at the 
Takiff Center, as well as other areas.  This testing will take place sometime during the week of August 
21-25, 2017.   

d) Lorise mentioned that are arrows in the parking lot are starting to fade.  Chris said that he will be able 
to have them repainted this summer.  He will also repaint the handicapped accessible signs too.   

Adjourn:  11:40 a.m.

The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 16, 2017 at 11:00 a.m.



VIII. Executive Director’s Report

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

February 2017 

West and Astor Playgrounds 
The Special Projects and Facilities Committee has reviewed the Playground Design Concepts at 
two committee meetings and recommends advancement of the conceptual designs for approval at 
the February Board meeting. Both Park and School staff have heard resident/staff/student 
feedback and also recommend approval of design concepts. Both projects are within the budget 
established by the Board.  Staff will return to the Board with approval of the Construction Bids 
on May 2.  Further discussion will occur at a later date on elements that will be priced and 
installed by Park District staff.  These items include park signage, plantings, fencing, etc. 

Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
We have scheduled a Special Projects and Facilities Committee meeting on Tuesday, March 7 at 
6:30 p.m. to discuss Takiff Parking and Lakefront Park.

Lakefront Park 
We have a public meeting on Lakefront Park on March 2 at 6:30pm.  A letter was sent out to the 
surrounding neighborhood and the Lakefront Advisory Committee and was posted on our 
website and bulletin boards at the Takiff Community Center.

Our Landscape Architect, AltaManu along with staff, will be leading the meeting in order to 
gather input from the community.  The Park District’s Master Plan, which was approved in 2015, 
included a number of suggestions for the Lakefront Park restoration. Among the suggestions are 
these ideas: 

Consider adding interpretative signage 
Consider adding native plantings 
Consider updating and adding accessible paths 
Consider upgrading the park’s tennis courts and playground 
Protect the beautiful trees in Lakefront Park 

Watts Ice Rink 
Due to a high volume of unseasonably warm temperatures, the Watts Ice Center rinks were 
closed for the season on Saturday, February 18. 

Watts Ice Center is traditionally open from the day after Thanksgiving through the end of 
February. During cold winters, the rink at times is able to stay open into March; in warmer 
winters, the rink has closed early due to the sun and high temperatures. 

Unfortunately, the rink’s cooling system cannot compete with the 50 and 60 degree temperatures 
that have occurred this weekend and are expected to continue through the week. The rink staff
has been monitoring ice conditions and performing ice maintenance consistently throughout the 
season and with increased frequency the last week, but the warm weather had melted the ice 
beyond repair. 



2

All rentals, classes, drop-in hockey times, and public skate scheduled through Tuesday, February 
28 were canceled. 

Glencoe Youth Services and Glencoe Junior High Project
Included in Action Items are Glencoe Youth Services and Glencoe Junior High Project annual 
reports. Representatives gave presentations at the last Finance Committee of the Whole meeting. 
We are requesting you take action to approve the stipend amount at this meeting. 

2016/17 Goals and Objectives 
Attached is a status update of the FY 2016/2017 Goals.  As you can see, staff have been very 
busy and have accomplished a great deal over the course of the year.   

IPRA/IAPD Conference 
Staff and one commissioner attended the IPRA/IAPD Conference on January 19-21. Attached 
are the conference reports from our attendees.  In addition, staff shared information on the 
sessions they attended during a staff meeting. 

I am also very humbled to be the recipient of the IPRA Professional of the Year Award.    I 
would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board and Staff for their enormous part in my 
receiving this award.  Without the support and trust that the Board and staff have in me, I would 
not have received this award or been able to do half of what we have accomplished here in 
Glencoe.  I am extremely thankful for a staff that stands behind me, does not run the other way 
when I have an idea, and works every bit as hard as I do for the profession and the Glencoe 
community.

IPRA Speaking Engagement 
I spoke at the IPRA Conference session You Have a Comprehensive Plan Now What? In addition 
to myself, the panel included Steve Konters (Hitchcock Design Group), Barbara Heller (Heller 
and Heller Consulting), and Mike Renner (Commissioner, Cary Park District).  The session 
included a comprehensive overview what to do with the Master Plan once it is done!  The 
session was very well attended. 

Park Planning 
Chris and I continue to work on the planning process for our capital projects.

We are also eagerly awaiting the opening of Melvin Berlin Park on Friday, April 28.  We are 
happy to report that we came in under budget for this project and have approval from our donor 
to use the remaining donated funds on equipment that will help better maintain our sports fields. 

We have finished the ADA Audit of all of our parks and facilities. Recreation Accessibility 
Consultants, llc. will present the audit to the Board in June or July. 

Freedom of Information Report 
There were two FOIA requests this month. SmartProcedure requested purchase records from 
August 9, 2016 to current. This was received on Tuesday, February 14 and responded to before 
the end of that day. Local Labs requested a list of candidate filings for the 2017 consolidated 



3

elections, Treasurer’s Report, and Budget. This was received on Tuesday, February 14 and 
responded to on Wednesday, February 15. 

Action Items 
A. Approval of Glencoe Youth Services Stipend Request 
B. Approval of SNAP Stipend Request 
C. Approval of Glencoe Jr. High Project Stipend Request 
D. Approval of Designs for West Park 
E. Approval of Designs for Astor Place Park 
F. Approval of Resolution No. 858 Repealing Resolution No. 636 and Amending the Glencoe 

Park District Policy on the Sale of Park District Land to a Non-Governmental Entity 
G. Approval of Third Party Construction on Park District Property Policy 
H. Approval of Upgrade IT TSS Plan 
I. Approval of the revised Fund Balance Policy 
J. Approval of Resolution No. 859 to Commit Additional Funds to Master Plan Capital Project 

Fund (69) 
K. Approval for Architectural Services of Wight and Company 

Submitted by:
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
ANNUAL GOALS
FY 2016/2017

End of the FY Update

GOAL STATUS:
COMPLETED

STARTED
NOT STARTED

HOLD



Goal:  Deliver Innovative Programs and Services that align with current and future needs of 
the community

Fiscal Year: 16-17

Objective Responsible
Person

Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Perform analysis of park sites and identify areas of 
potential growth for programs and rentals 
Field usage in RecTrac to monitor openings. Soccer and football 
played for the 1st time at West Park. Reinsdorf Softball Field has 
been configured for multiple age groups to play. 

Chris P 
Chris L 
Mike

Completed  11/18 

2 Create 2 new oportunities for basketball skill 
development while making at least 30% profit on each 
class. 
3 vs 3 program and pre-season skills clinics

Chris P Completed   2/17 

3 Raise Private Sailing revenue by 25% from FY 15/16       
while netting 55% 
Focus was placed on improving quality of group sailing program

Bobby Not complete 
/On- Going 

10/16

4 Develop a Glencoe Park District Volunteer Program and 
build a network of volunteers. 
Manual has been created and recruiting packet has been created.  
Will be posted on-line this week.  No volunteers have been secured 
other than house basketball coaches. 

Liz V Started  2/17 

5 Expand Children’s Circle by adding a loving and 
nurturing childcare environment for incoming or current 
families for infant to 15 months 
Infant Care started in September 2016.

Naomi 
Amanda 

Completed 2/17 

6 Install three lending libraries in our parks 
Libraries installed at Takiff, Friends, Lakefront, and Shelton parks 

Chris L 
Erin

Completed  9/16 

7 Provide a nature preschool or nature preschool classes 
allowing the children to explore activities about and in a 
nature environment utilizing many of the parks Glencoe 
has to offer 
Offering spring break “nature week” program.  Nature based play 
area will be built where the old garden was in spring. 

Naomi Completed 2/17 

8 Research nature-based programming in order to 
introduce one new nature activity or program each 
season within the GPD current programs, camps and 
special events 
Added nature based Amazing Minds class in winter session and a 
nature based school day off program in spring.  

Stephani Complete 2/17 

9 To increase the amount of paid rentals at the Takiff 
Center in 2016/2017 by 5% from the total in 2015/2016 
This number is to include birthday party rentals. 
Met this goal as of 1/31/2017 

Paul Complete 2/17 

10 Develop a program matrix chart as a means to analyze 
deficiencies in program offerings and facility use 
Creating tool to identify areas of program growth 

Mike Started  2/17 

11 Increase enrollment for toddler classes by 12 new 
enrollments Provide classes for toddlers; Parent and Tot 
class, as well as a class for toddlers who are ready for 
preschool, but miss the September 1 deadline. 
Not projected to meet this goal at this time; changes have been 
made to registration timelines to  meet this goal in 2017-18 

Naomi  Started 2/17 



12 Increase registraiton of paid adult/active adult programs 
from 74 participants (annual participation for FY 2015-
2016) to 84 participants (13.5% increase) As of 1/31/17 there 
are 115 active adult program participants. 

Liz V Complete  2/17 

13 Increase fitness opportunities by 5% in 2016/2017 
Additional fitness offerings added each brochure cycle including 
partnership with Reach Yoga

Paul Complete 2/17 

14 Complete a program analysis on Glencoe Beach 
Programming 
Changes suggested for 2017-18 based on analysis 

Mike
Bobby

Complete  9/16 

15 Complete a program analysis on Watts Facility 
Changes already implemented for 2016-17 rink season include 
USFSA program curriculum and semi-private classes.  Changes for 
next year will include broomball programs and adjusted times.  

Mike
Bobby

Complete 2/17 

16 Maintain the continuity and quality standards of our camp 
program during the staff transition 
Maintained camp standards in summer 2016 and received a similar 
participant evaluation as 2015. 

Mike
Stephani
Chris
Naomi 

Completed   8/16 



Goal:  Maintain and enhance standards of excellence in parks and facilities

Fiscal Year: 16-17

Objective Responsible
Person

Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Develop procedures to ensure improved Beach 
cleanliness 
New trash cans that facilitated increased and easier removal of trash, 
more routine cleaning of bathrooms and beach by operations and 
parks staff. 

Mike
Chris L

Complete  9/16 

2 Update Master Plan after CARP discussion Board 
committee meeting now held in July to establish 3 year Master Plan 
schedule.  Plan updated by Hitchcock to reflect those changes. 

Lisa Completed 2/17 

3 Complete NRPA Proragis data base for assistance in 
effective management and planning of our resources and 
facilities 
NRPA changed data base program.  Started new program but now 
need to wait until FY16/17 is complete to complete financial 
section.   

Lisa / Erin 
Chris L 
Carol

Started

4 Complete Kalk Park Project 
- Complete Community Input/Board Input
- Competitively Bid Project
- Supervise Hitchcock/Manage Construction Project
- Ensure Project Close Punch List is Completed
- Ensure project is completed to bid specifications

Lisa
Chris L 

Complete 11/20 

5 Complete Melvin Berlin Park Project 
- Competitively Bid Project
- Supervise Hitchcock/Manage Construction Project 

Ensure Project Close Punch List is Completed
- Ensure project is completed to bid specifications

Awaiting Spring Opening but project is complete 

Lisa
Chris L

Complete 2/17 

6 Complete Shelton Park Playground Project 
- Complete Community Input/Board Input
- Competitively Bid Project
- Supervise Hitchcock/Manage Construction Project 

Ensure Project Close Punch List is Completed
- Ensure Project is Completed to Bid Specifications 

Playground was opened in September 

Lisa
Chris L 

Complete  10/16 

7 Oversee Renovations: Takiff Center Roofs/Clock Tower 
- Complete Community Input/Board Input
- Competitively Bid Project
- Ensure Excellent Communication with Affected 

Facility Users and Staff
- Supervise ACG Manage Construction Project Ensure 

Project Close Punch List is Completed
- Ensure Project is Completed to Bid Specifications 

Project is complete.  Minor system tweak on clock but will be 
done by mid-February 

Chris L 
Lisa
Bill

Complete 2/17 

8 Develop a matrix for evaluating professional services for 
special projects 
Performed end of project evaluation for Hitchcock Design Group 

Lisa
Chris L

Completed 11/16 

9 Oversee leak detection and repair glycol line at Watts Ice 
Center. Leak has been located and repair will take place in spring. 

Anthony Started 1/30 



10  Oversee the completion of the  “by owner” tasks during 
the renovation of Melvin Berlin Park 

Anthony Complete  6/16 

11  Collaborate with horticulture staff to develop new 
plantings throughout Glencoe 
Planting beds at Takiff, Lakefront, Watts, and Veterans Park were 
updated. 

Anthony Complete 11/16 

12 Support Early Childhood staff in preparing the Infant 
Care Room within DCFS code 
Room was prepared prior to opening and received certification from 
DCFS. 

Bill Complete   8/16 

13 Create a Beach staff break room in the Safran house so 
that employees on break are out of the public eye 
Storage room was divided to create an air-conditioned staff 
break/training area. 

Bill Complete  6/16 

Goal:  Enhance Customer Service

Fiscal Year: 16-17 
Objective Responsible

Person
Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Use technology to help more effectivley communicate 
league scheduling, standings and weather conditions to 
program participants. 
Implemented use of QuickScores and the Rainout Line 

Chris P Complete  2/17 

2 Cross-Train Registration staff in order to provide 
competent back-up/coverage 

Lorise
Liz
Lauren
Autumn 

Ongoing 2/17 

3 Develop internal team building opportunities for full and 
part-time staff 
This is an ongoing effort:  Started SPIRIT Cards, Full-Time staff 
training in August, All-Staff training in May, and Monthly Lunch 
and Learns with supervisory staff. 

Lisa
A-Team

Completed 
and On-Going 

2/17

4 Evaluate Customer Service Training for Beach and Watts 
Facilities 
Increase focus on customer service in beach staff training. Better CS 
marks on end of season evaluation. 

Lisa / Mike 
Bobby

Complete   2/17 

5 Train all new full-time staff on Expectations and 
Standards
Held Full-Time staff meeting and Started Monthly Lunch and Learns 

Lisa
A-Team

Completed 
and On-Going 

2/17



Goal:  Improve awareness of GPD programs, facilities, parks and services through effective 
marketing and signage

Fiscal Year: 16-17
Objective Responsible

Person
Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Join Chicago/North Shore Visitor Convention Bureau 
Joined in April; group now posts our events to their website. Also 
purchased Visitor’s Guide print ads (distributed to 75,000 
hotels/visitors centers/universities/real estate companies/local 
businesses) as well as website ad for Watts (est. 30,000 monthly 
visitors)

Erin Completed 2/17 

2 Develop a marketing plan that incorporates themes from 
the Master Plan 

Erin Ongoing 2/17 

3 Create a calendar of 2016-17 marketing themes & 
priorities
Working to incorporate with special events calendar 

Erin Ongoing 2/17 

4 Incorporate new technology to achieve marketing goals  
Created linked brochure for Watts, looking at new ways to use TVs 
at Watts for pricing, exploring Canva as branded design platform, 
using Meetup.com for promoting programs, using lead generation 
ads on Facebook/Instagram to increase email list, using Welcome 
Wagon to reach new customers, using Google ad words to promote 
Beach/Preschool programs 

Erin Completed 
and Ongoing 

2/17

5 Develop a program to systematically update park signs 
Will replace 3 signs per year plus any new construction 

Erin Completed 2/17 

6 Develop a social media plan to include Instagram, 
Pinterest, Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn  
Integrated Pinterest/Facebook tracking into website to follow traffic 
patterns; utilizing social media to meet marketing goals 

Erin Completed 2/17 

7 Develop a marketing plan for Infant Room  
Utilized Comcast commercial, web, social media, direct mail, and 
media relations to promote program to new moms, resulting in full 
enrollment in program 

Erin Completed 2/17 

8 Add way-finding digital signage to the Takiff Center 
Digital signage software does not work as needed for Takiff Center, 
re-evaluating options 

Erin Hold 2/17 

9 Foster key relationships with local media Work with key 
media on weekly basis; introduce self to new reporters as needed 

Erin Completed 
and Ongoing 

2/17

Goal:  Sustain Long-term Financial Strength

Fiscal Year: 16-17 
Objective Responsible

Person
Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Review District’s Current Financial Policies Carol Ongoing  
2 Utilize completed Master Plan, ADA Transition Plan and 

New ACGT Infrastructure Assessment to prepare 3-5 
year Capital Plan 

Lisa, Carol, 
Chris

Completed 
and Ongoing 

3 Compile and review new mandatory FLSA regulation 
information and prepare recommendation for 
implementation and impact on District’s full-time staff 

Carol Completed 11/16 

4 Review and Update District’s Purchasing Policy Carol Started  



Goal:  Create a system to maintain and improve operational processes
Fiscal Year: 16-17

Objective Responsible
Person

Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Hire and train new full-time Accounting Manager Carol Completed 6/16 
2 Install “Replication Server” at Takiff Center for IT 

Disaster Recovery Plan. 
Carol Completed 7/16 

3 Organize Financial storage areas Carol 
Bus / Reg 

Completed 2/17 

4 Establish the use of the park district bus for enhancing 
current and future programs while utilizing it in different 
program areas totaling 75 times for the year 
Bus used daily for summer camp and daily for Kid’s Club 

Team
Leader &
Rec Team 

Completed  2/17 

5 Develop an evaluation for independent contractual 
services and administer to participants at least once a 
year. 
All programs are evaluated on the same set of standards each session. 

Mike Completed  2/17

6 Modify financial procedures for District’s new financial 
software system 

Carol Completed 2/17 

7 Create PDF of the Camp, Safety and teachers manuals for 
easy access and distribution. 

Lorise
Lauren

Completed 12/16 

8 Clean up RecTrac and all public drives of obsolete data All Teams Completed 12/16 
9 Create a system for filing and tracking of all Takiff 

Center building systems forms, certificates, and 
information 
All building system forms have been scanned to computer and are 
being moved to the P-Drive.  

Paul Complete 2/17 

10 To create a comprehensive emergency plan for the Takiff 
Center which can be shared with all staff and used as a 
training manual for future years 

Paul Completed  6/16 

11 Review and update Watts Ice rink procedures and update 
Operations Manual including an opening and closing 
checklist
Operations manual has been updated for season and will continue to 
be revised through reminder of season.  

Mike
Bobby

Completed 2/17 

12 Review and update Glencoe Beach procedures and update 
Beach/Boat Operations Manual including an opening and 
closing checklist 

Mike
Bobby

Completed  10/16 

13 Prepare for Distinguished Accreditation standards by 
reviewing and update policies and procedures for the 
District in alignment with Accreditation standards 

Lisa
Department 
Heads

Completed 
and On-Going 

2/17

14 Work with President of the Board to provide necessary 
Board Development and Training for Commissioners 

Lisa On-Going 2/17 

15 Develop Program Recaps and Program Timelines for all 
programs and facilities 
Staff is still gathering information to complete this and looking for the 
most effective way to document. 

Mike
Fac / Rec 

Hold  2/17 

16 Update and consolidate waivers in RecTrac and WebTrac, 
which include downloadable forms 

Mike/Bobby
Erin/Lorise 

Completed 11/16 

17 Create and implement Lost and Found procedures Paul/Bobby 
Reg Team 

Completed 11/16 



Goal: Continue to foster good community and intergovernmental relations to maximize 
District effectiveness

Fiscal Year: 16-17
Objective Responsible

Person
Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Evaluate Shared Services agreement with the Village 
Begun internal evaluation of Shared Services 

Lisa
Chris L

Started  1/17 

2 Create a tiered sponsorship program for special events to 
promote involvement from community 
organizations/businesses.
Attended IPRA meeting on Sponsorship to kick-off discussion and 
began informal discussions on process. Sponsorship information is 
complete and posted.  Sponsorships have been secured for in-kind 
donations for special events.

Erin
Liz V 

Completed   2/17 

3 Meet with community and affiliate groups on a quarterly 
basis to remain informed and provide input. 
Met with GBA once, one more meeting scheduled before end of FY.  
Met once with AYSO, one more meeting schedule before end of FY.  

Chris P  Started  2/17 

4 Work cooperatively with Village on Green Bay trail items 
Developed a partnership between Friends of Green Bay Trail, Village, 
and Park District for restoration of a section of the Green Bay Trail 

Lisa Completed 2/17

Goal: Encourage environmental sustainability practices District-wide
Fiscal Year: 16-17

Objective Responsible
Person

Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Investigate Green Cleaning Practice/Products 
Iinvestigated environmentally friendly dog waste bags. Completing 
cleaning product inventory in facilities 

Chris L 
Anthony
Bill

Completed 1/23 

2 Utilize more electronic communication channels in 
replace of paper flyers 
Increasingly utilizing email and social media to promote programs 

Erin Ongoing 2/17 

3 Utilize soy-ink and recycle paper content for brochures 
and Glencoe Quarterly 

Erin Completed 2/17 

4 Continue to install hand-drying stations throughout the 
park district to minimize paper towel use. 

Bill Not 
Completed 

2/17

5 Investigate adding water bottle fill stations on drinking 
fountains at facilities 
Fountains were replaced or added at the Beach and Boat House. New 
fountains required at Takiff/Watts.  Bottle fillers added to Kalk and 
Berlin Park.  Will continue adding bottle fill stations when parks are 
renovated and budget for new fountains at Takiff 

Chris L Completed 
and on-going

2/17

6 Implement a planting plan to replace removed ash trees 
with diverse tree species to avoid monoculture of trees 
Trees were planted District-wide to replace ash trees. 
Shelton/Kalk/Lakefront/South & Green Bay/ Watts/various 
numbered parks. Different species were selected. 

Chris L 
Parks

Completed  2/17 

7 Continue to abate invasive plant species throughout the 
District
Brush line at South & Green Bay Park was renovated. Work was 
done on the beach bluffs and in Shelton Park. 

Chris L 
Parks

Complete 2/17 



5 Work with Central School Athletics Department and 
Stacy Pritsker of Glencoe Jr. High Project to ensure 
Central School gym usage is appropriately scheduled, 
before meeting with School District 35 
School gym schedule has been created and reviewed by School 
District and Park District staff to ensure there are no scheduling 
conflicts.  As of 1/31/17 no issues have been reported by D35 or PD 
staff

Chris P Complete 2/17 

6 Work with Glencoe Baseball Association and AYSO to 
train their staff on how to effectively use the “Rainout 
Line”
Implemented in August

Chris P Completed  2/17 

Goal:  Encourage professional development in full-time staff
Fiscal Year: 16-17

Objective Responsible
Person

Status Update 
1/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Renew CPRP Status by Attending Conferences/Seminars 
related to positions 
Lisa and Carol - Completed 

Certified 
Staff

Completed 2/17 

2 Recertify as a CPSI (Certified Playground Safety 
Inspector) 
Recertified 10/22/16

Chris L Completed  11/16 

3 Become CPRP Certified (Certified Parks & Recreation 
Professional)

Chris L Not 
Completed 

2/17

4 Become involved in IPRA Special Event Committee  Liz V Completed 2/17 
5 Attend PDRMA HELP 

All New Staff Completed: Stephani, Liz, Chris P., Bobby, Paul and 
Amanda 

Liz V/ Paul 
Chris P 

Completed  2/17 

6 Attend marketing/design meetings outside IPRA 
(Ascend, AMA, AIGA, PRSA, DePaul alum, etc.) 
Started Charmm’d marketing group w/ North Shore peers 

Erin Completed 2/17 

7 Join local (informal) group of North Shore Park District 
communication professionals 
Started Charmm’d marketing group w/ North Shore peers

Erin Completed 2/17 

8 Host IPRA C&M section summer social Erin Completed 2/17 

9 Pass and Achieve Certification for CPSI (Certified 
Playground Safety Inspector) 
Certified 10/22/16 

Anthony Completed   2/17 



IAPD/IPRA Soaring to New Heights Conference Summary Reports 2017 

Lisa Sheppard 
Day/Date:  January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  Fire It Up!  The Power of Making Good Happen 
Presenter: Lisa Paradis, Director, Bookline, MA 
 
Session Included: This session focused on creating a culture in your agency that is central to the impact agencies can 
have on the people who live them and how to launch ideas that can both inspire community engagement and 
motivate and inspire staff. 
 
Some takeaways: 

 Reading recommendation:  The New Public Service by Bob and Janet Denhardt 
 When creating a culture remember that satisfied employees are there to get while Engaged employees are 

there to give.  Satisfaction is about doing my job.  Engagement is about doing my job above and beyond 
and making my agency successful. 

 The Disengagement Boat.  In your agency you more than likely have 2 employees that want to sink your 
boat, 3 Rock Stars and rest are disengaged.  As a leader which employee do you focus your time on?  
Where are you on the Boat?   

 Discretionary Effort:  Effort:  Heads and Hearts   
 Change = Challenge not threat 
 Social Enterprise:  We have revenue streams but we must never forget that we deliver social benefit. 
 Central Pillars of Joy 

o Ability to: 
- Reframe a situation 
- Experience Gratitude 
- Express Kindness and Generosity 
 

 Growing Through Adversity:  Google Rabbi Lobster video 
 Leadership Through Dancing Guy: Google Dancing Man 
 What’s your connection to Park and Recreation 

 What’s your cause? 
 What’s your belief? 
 Why does your organization exist? 
 What is your calling? 

 Marking Time is a Death Sentence (Professional Death Sentence) 
 But finding your passion is a life sentence.  Something in our agency that gives you a sense of drive 

and purpose! 
 
Day/Date:  January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  UnPlug Illinois:  Communicate the Value of Parks and Recreation through education and 
storytelling. 
Presenters:  Allison Niemela, Executive Director Batavia Park District; Jarrod Scheunemann, Community Services 
and Education Coordinator Elgin Park Department and University of Illinois Office or Recreation and Park 
Resources. 
Session Included: IPRA developed a state-wide awareness campaign to educate communities on the value of parks 
and recreation.  The kit provides agencies with the resources, tools, templates and inspiration to communicate the 
value of parks and recreation.  The Glencoe Park District and Erin Maassen were cited several times on how to 
effectively use the information provided!  Recommended giving the kit to each commissioner has an education tool 
so that they can be advocates in the community. 
 
Day/Date:  January 21, 2017 
Session Name:  Keynote General Session with Steve Gilliland 
Presenter:  Steve Gilliland, Author of numerous books including: Enjoy the Rid, Hide Your Goat, Making a 
Difference and Detour. 



 
Session Included:  A blueprint for getting the most out of life, Enjoy the Ride is a hilarious and brilliantly conceived 
keynote that causes people to examine where theya re personally and professionally.  It lifts people up and inspires 
them to evolve and appreciate, rather than simply maintain and exist.  When you Enjoy the Ride, you will learn to: 

 Check Your Passion:  Love what you do; never forget why you do it. 
 Cure Your Destination Disease:  Live more for today, less for tomorrow and never about yesterday. 
 Refocus Your Attention: Decide what’s important and never take it for granted. 

If you want to achieve true success and fulfillment, you must first discover an enthusiasm for your work and 
personal life.  Decide where you are heading, get on the bus, choose the right seat and Enjoy The Ride.   
 
Day/Date:  January 21, 2017 
Session Name:  Productive and Purposeful Meetings at Your Agency 
Presenter:  Nancy Sylvester, Professor Emeritus of Speech Rock Valley College and author of The Complete Idiots 
guide to Roberts Rule. 
Session included:  

 Techniques for Serving as a Successful Chair 
 Keeping Participants Focused 
 Facilitating Discussion 
 Ensuring Follow-Through 

Handouts attached 
 
Day/Date:  January 21, 2017 
Session Name:  You Have a Comprehensive Plan Now What? 
Presenters: Steve Konters (Hitchcock Design Group) 
         Barbara Heller (Heller and Heller Consulting) 
         Mike Renner (Commissioner, Cary Park District) 
         Lisa Sheppard (Executive Director, Glencoe Park District) 
 
Session included:  

  What is a Comprehensive Plan  
o Comp Plan vs. strategic plan  
o Purposes of a comprehensive plan  

 Providing direction (Board, staff, community) 
o Components to consider  
o 5 year vs 10 year outlook  

 Keys to successful implementation  
o engaging and validating your actions to the community  
o dealing with stakeholder interests  

 Developing the implementation strategy  
o how to use the plan year to year  

 Coordination with budgets and financial planning  
o Cary Park District case study  
o plan for retired debt  
o supporting document for grant applications  
o donation planning (i.e. Park Foundation)  
o coordination with department and personal plans  

 Tracking and evaluating progress  
o Begin again  

 
Michael Lushniak  
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  Dealing with Bullying in Your District Programs and Staff 
Learning Outcomes:   

 More than half of bullying situations stop when a peer intervenes.  
 Bullying leads to depression and other health issues costly to participants and staff 



 Create a bullying policy to prevent bullying and give yourself a guide on how to handle it.  
 Park Districts are using school law and policy to respond to bullying 
 Tort immunity helps to protect park districts from lawsuits about bullying 
 Courts have set precedent by siding with agency in a number of bullying cases 

o They have asked what the agency knew about the situation.  
o If you are given information, you need to act on it in some way to protect yourself.  

 Failure to follow a zero tolerance bullying policy could put agencies at risk.  If you have a policy you must 
follow it as closely as possible.  

 Include in policy 
o Definitions  
o List of prohibited acts 
o Investigative procedures 
o Consequences 
o Communication plan 

 Work to coordinate with over governmental agencies in the community or develop a united and consistent 
approach.  

 Communication with parents before program beings as well as during the program is important. 
o Be proactive  

 When an issue of staff bullying is presented: 
o Show an intolerance 
o Investigate 
o Take appropriate disciplinary action 

Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  From Turmoil to Stability:  Plainfield Park District 
Learning Outcomes:   

 The history 
o 5 member board 
o Tax rate .2433  
o Lack of documentation – small amount of written policy and procedure 
o Grew quickly – not a lot of long term planning in 2013 

 After 2013 the culture changed 
o Long term board which changed in 2011 by adding one new person 
o In 2013 two additional new board members came in so 3 members on the board starting going 

away from the mission. Took President, VP roles.  
o Village board member placed as acting executive director 
o The community took action and started spreading information on-line and in person.   

 Organized a rally to gain public support – gained media attention 
o Interim executive director begins investigation into agency books and documentation for laws 

being broken – spread rumor that park district was run poorly.   Upset about taxes being raised 
every year.  

o The decision making process was taken away and sweeping changes were taking place.  Tried to 
force out old board members.  

o New executive director was awarded 3 year contract  
o Stopped public communication and released key staff members 
o Majority commissioners lied to make staff and board members look incredible.  
o Removed residents from board meetings frequently when they disagreed.  
o Getting a committed group of residents to advocate for the agency was important 
o A department was eliminated and two key staff members resigned.  



 Things begin to improve 
o After labor relations board rules against the Park District, the executive director resigned.  
o One of three majority board members begins to change perspective. 
o Concern about getting a good executive director with current situation  
o Illegal purchasing comes to light; more in fighting begins among majority board members. 
o Involved state senator to assist in reshaping the park district. Changed Park Board from 5 to 7 

people and appointed two new members,  
o Hired interim director with knowledge and experience to bring about change.  
o Open meeting act violations were reported and brought to light.  
o Community activism still very important. 

 The aftermath 
o Resignations and terminations 
o Tarnished reputation of agency 
o Unionized park staff 
o $900,000 in costs associated with turmoil.  
o Amendment of the park code 
o Created agency master plan  
o Referendum passed to keep tax rate the same despite complete payment of bonds. Building new 

rec center. 
o Media can be your best friend or worst enemy.  Tell your story!  
o Formalized policy and procedure for agency.  
o Better efforts focused on getting the right people on the park board. Have a board succession plan.  

Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Using survey results to improve your agency 
Learning Outcomes:   

 Using an independent source to produce results helps provide the perception of unbiased results.  
 Don’t use surveys if you already have your mind made up.  
 When using an outside company ask questions to ensure that you are getting what you are looking 

for.  
o Number of questions 
o Guaranteed number of responses 
o Margin of error 

 Ensure that the demographic you are looking for is the one providing information 
 Get staff input to ensure that questions match actual operation.  
 Limit time of survey; don’t make something too long that no one wants to fill out.  
 Include question, “Have you used our services in the past 12 months?” 
 Satisfaction assessment matrix 

o Presents information easily for staff 
o Gives clear direction about high and low priority areas.  

 There should always be something actionable that can be done with answers to questions.   
o If you can’t change it, don’t ask it, but there is almost always small tweaks that can be 

done if sweeping change cannot be made.  
 Rapid improvement shows customers you take their feedback into consideration.  

o Document and publicize changes made based on survey results.  

Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Building Connections through Sports 
Learning Outcomes:   



 Kids can get engaged though many different types of games.  
 Competitive games get different results than collaborative games.  

 Good coaches are able to get the best out of people while giving them confidence and making sure 
they are enjoying themselves.  

 Sports are a great way to work with kids because it teaches them life skills.  
 Teamwork 
 Communication 
 Structure 
 Leadership 
 Healthy activity.  

 Physical activity enhances brain function  
 Integrating education into athletics maximizes potential and efficiencies.  

 Teach health and character concepts  
 Treat mistakes as opportunities for growth. 

 Coaches should focus on clear communication 
 Tell it, label it, and celebrate it.    

 If something is going well, replicate it.  If something is not going well, change the way you do it.  
 Principals taught in sports and games are applicable throughout life.  Any instructor or coach, no 

matter what the subject, should work to show how lessons learned in recreation are applicable to 
other life situations.  

Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Acing your ACA:  From staff training to site visits 
Learning Outcomes:   

 ACA standards at a glance – starting point 
 Site visit includes documentation and practice so policies must be implemented. 
 Timeline – start planning early.  

 
 Fall 

 review of last year’s program 
 Pick camp training dates  
 Finalize camp schedules 
 Update RecTrac 
 Update manuals 
 Post jobs 
 Update website and start 

promotional materials 
 Winter 

 Marketing 
 Training topics and prep 
 Start booking field trips and busses 
 Inventory supplies 
 Host open house  
 Start registration  
 Order supplies 
 Start putting binders and paperwork 

together 

 Spring 
 Finalize staff trainings  
 Finish staff hiring 
 Communicate with staff, NSSRA, 

bus company 
 Collect parent emergency forms 
 Conduct staff trainings 
 Sort supplies  
 Safety review 

 Summer  
 Site specific trainings 
 Rosters with emergency info, sign 

in/out info 
 Staff resources out 
 Parent communication  
 Mid-summer staff evaluations 
 Review rosters weekly 
 Hold staff meetings 
 Supervisors visit sites. 



 End of season evaluations   
 

 Track hiring process on a sheet that you don’t give to HR.  Will need it for on-site visit.  
 Must have camp goals for ACA – good idea anyway.  Communicate them to parents.  
 Need detailed outlines for trainings to show items required by ACA 
 Have a parent manual acknowledgement form to confirm that parents have seen these policies.  
 DCFS mandatory reporter training – do on-line and pay staff for time to complete it.  
 Need to review drop-off/pick-up procedure – how can we verify a safe pick-up in car line? 
 Community involvement – have documented meeting with Public Safety about camps 
 Thermometers for fridges to verify temps – what do we need from Marla’s Lunches 
 Vehicle training, vehicle maintenance records 
 Inventory staff certifications (DCFS, first aid/CPR), FT staff needs resumes and continuing education 
 Processes and procedures reviewed by a health professional every three years. Use allergist if available.  
 Must have food handler certification for snacks – can get certification on-line.  
 Have staff sign-off on key safety procedures – include ACA standards 
 Schedule preliminary visit to review before being officially audited 

Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Athletic Events:  Buzz, Bugs, and Brain Bank 
Learning Outcomes:   

 Market running events on-line using www.runningintheusa.com 
 Focus of race marketing 

o Promote health 
o Community connection 
o Improve community perception of agency 

 Find a hook 
o Shirts 
o Swag 
o The course 
o Food or drink 
o Build a unique atmosphere 

 Get people involved 
o Cash or in-kind donations from community 
o Use community groups as volunteers 

 If they are helping they are marketing for you 
 Consider lax weather cancellation policies to have a better chance of running the event.   

o Must have good EAPs  
o Use industry standards for running races, not agency standards for program cancellations 
o Look into event insurance 

 Covers costs of races that get cancelled.  Only good for big events.  
o Consider not offering refunds for cancelled races – must educate early.  

 Bib timing vs chip timing 
o Bib timing is cheaper 
o Chip timing is good but there should also be a back-up.  
o Focus on accurate times and getting results out quickly.  

 Create frenzy with price tiers.  
o Early bird 
o Regular 
o Last minute 
o Race Day 

 Note on registration - must be signed up by XXXX date to ensure the correct size shirt. Shirts should be 
sought after to get people to register early.  



 Consider packet pick-up at key sponsor locations within the community 

Carol Mensinger  
In addition to the numerous networking opportunities with other professionals and board members, as well as 
visiting the large exhibit hall to see numerous exhibitors related to my current position, I earned .5 continuing 
education units (CEUs) toward the renewal of my professional certification (2.0 units are required every two years).  
 
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  Legal/Legislative Update – Part 1 
Presenter: Jason Anselment, IAPD Legal Counsel and Robert Bush, Partner Ancel Glink 
Session Included:  Legal experts discussed new laws and recent court decisions that impact park districts, 
conservation districts, forest preserves, recreation and special recreation districts 
Learning Outcomes:  Learned about recent legal development and other issues that impact our agency operations 
and learned information that hlps us determine how to adapt to the requirements of the new laws. 

Session Name:  Legal/Legislative Update – Part 2 
Presenter: Adrew Paine, Partner, Tressler LLP 
Session Included:  Legal experts discussed new laws and recent court decisions that impact park districts, 
conservation districts, forest preserves, recreation and special recreation districts 
Learning Outcomes:  Learned about recent legal development and other issues that impact our agency operations 
and learned information that hlps us determine how to adapt to the requirements of the new laws. 
 
Session Name: IPRA/IAPD Awards Luncheon 
Saturday, January 21, 2017 
Session Name:  HR Documentation & Personnel Files 
Presenter:  Kelly Hayden, Chief Legal Counsel, Management Association 
Session Included: This session examined the current HR practices and how agencies are dcoummenting these 
pratices, the keeping of personnel files and the decisions that ensure, are legally defensible. 
Learning Outcomes:  Understanding of what goes into a personnel file and the importance of properly documenting 
employment practices, including an employee write-up. 
 
Session Name: New FLSA Regulations: Where Are We Today? 
Presenter:  Amanda Collman, Partner and Susan Glover, Attorney, Robbins Schwartz 
Session Included:  This session provided an inderstanding of recent changes to the “salary test” of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, and how to control overtime wages under the new test.  The presenters explored strategies for 
controlling overtime.  Additional topis included the legal pitfall when controlling overtime that arise from email. 
Test messages and other off duty work-related communications, and overtime policies that can backfire and create 
liability.    Future regulatory revisions on the Department of Labor agenda, such as possible changes to the “duries” 
tests for the exemptions for administrative, executive and professional employees was also covered. 
Learning Outcomes:  Better understanding of the recent changes to the “salary test” under the FLSA which result in 
more employees earning overtimes, as well as potential further regulatory changes on the horizon.   
 
Session Name: DCFS: Licensied Daycare:  How Your Agency’s Preschool Program May Be Impacted 
Presenter:  Gina Madden, Attorney
Session Included: Discussion of the DCFS regulatory matters that my impact preschool and youth programs.  Topics 
included  what programs are subject to DCFS licensure, what we need to do to be compliant. 
 
Learning Outcomes: Learned what regulations might be required for your early childhood and youth programs.  Our 
preschool and children circle is already DCFS licensed. 

Bobby Collins
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20  
Session Name: Competitive Bidding and Public Contracting 
Learning Outcomes:   

 The legal requirement for Park Districts to go out to bid for purchases and projects under the 70 ILCS1025/ 



Park District Code 
 Posting public notices and the process for accepting, opening and reviewing bids. Must follow process or 

bidding process is compromised. 
 Difference between a RFP and RFQ.  When a RFQ would be more suitable then a lowest bid. RFQ should 

be like a rating scale and transparent.  Should list the vendors by preference based on the bid. RFP should 
be lowest bid is chosen. 

 Bids requires over $25,000 
o Exceptions including software and used equipment  
o Emergency purchased that need ¾ of board approval 

 When lowest bids can be ignored; 
o Incomplete bids 
o Wrong pricing 
o Prevailing wages problems 

 Prevailing wage must be paid by the bidders.  New bidders often do not understand prevailing wage act and 
can cause issues with their bid.  

 When vendors make mistakes on bid costing you don’t have to throw the bid out but tells you a lot about 
the bidder.  

 Co-op Purchase can be both good and bad.  You need to do your homework. You must follow the joint 
purchasing act.  Do your homework on the website/vendor as not all websites are in compliance with the 
act.  
 

Day/Date:  Friday, January 20  
Session Name: Park District Mobile App 
Learning Outcomes:   

 The Naperville Park District developed their own App, which allows residents to: 
o Pay bills 
o Mass notification in emergency’s  
o Register for activities  
o Geo-locate all their parks and facilities  
o Check league schedules 
o Check weather cancellations  
o Store Park District Memberships: ex, Aquatics Facilities and Fitness Center  
o Check personal account  
o Donate to their Parks Foundation 
o Follow them on social media 

 They are very happy with the finished product but there are lots of issues to consider: 
o Expensive – $30-40k if you outsource, $20k in-house 
o Need 2 App’s, one for Apple and one for Google  
o Every time Apple and Google update phone systems you have to update the App 
o Does not integrate easily with Rectrac 
o Only 8oo User out of a community of more than 40k 
o Need to have a reason for your customer to keep the App installed or it negatively affects 

your rating in the App store.  If you have a bad rating it is difficult to find your App in the 
store. 

 They have plans to further develop the App and get positive feedback from residents. 
 
Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name: Lifeguard Training Drills 
Learning Outcomes:   



 New teamwork drills, which integrate scanning techniques.  Play alphabet soup to develop 
teamwork skills while focus on effective scanning. Teamwork drills should make up most of 
inservice training, as emergencies generally involve a team of guards. 

 Practice scanning wearing swim goggles with duct tape covering most of the goggle.  Forcing 
guards to improve accuracy of scanning  

 Practice front rescue drills with partners swimming opposite direction.  Force lifeguards to work 
harder.   

 Play hot potato with infant for CPR drills. Keeps all guards sharp. Mix up the rotation. 
 Discussion around making drills more difficult to push guards out of their comfort zone. Use 

music and games to distract the guards during physical endurance drills and training. 
 
Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name: Outdoor Ice Rinks in Northern Illinois, Are we nuts? Part 1 
Learning Outcomes:   

 The weather is a wildcard and communicating this with residents is a challenge but important. 
Most people think a rink is made in one day. The weather patterns in recent years have made 
maintaining ice more difficult.  Many non-refrigerated rinks lose ice many times a season.  

 Various tools can be used to maintain ice including edger, Zamboni and underground coils.  Rink 
liners have improved significantly over the last 5 years and now last around 5 years. There are 
many types of boards depending on needs and budget. 

 Unattended facilities are a safety risk and proper signage is required.  Many rinks use chain fences 
and lighting to deter unwanted visitors at night.  

 Staff safety should be a focus during training.  There can be injuries from falling on the ice, if 
proper shoe coverings are not worn. When laying ice, frostbite and hypothermia can occur if staff 
do not take breaks. 

 Always let the hose run if taking a break.  
 
Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name: Park District Finances: Learning it right and meet your objectives 
Learning Outcomes:   

 Levy (Fund/not specific) V’s Budget (specific) 
 Tax Limitations – “Tax Cap” is linked to CPI and can only be above with a referendum.  The 

initial thought is 2.1% increase in tax levy for 2017.  It based on EAV of the properties on the 
District. 

 Tax Cap Laws 
o Corporate tax 
o Rec tax 

 Limitation (growth in property values, i.e Glencoe)  V’s Extension (fall in property value) 
 Tax objections – It is very important to have a plan for accumulation of funds.  Residents want to 

know why you have large fund balances.  They may want to reduce tax if you are sitting on large 
fund balances. 

 Truth in Taxation Act – 105% over previous extension is the threshold for a hearing.  Must have a 
hearing if over. 

 The filing date for levy is the last Tuesday in December. 
 Budget and the process 

o “Good management is better than good income” 
 Max of 10% for miscellaneous expenses.  Detail is important for transparency. 
 When holding a hearing, it must be published at least 1 week in advance of the meeting 
 Amending budget and appropriation is set out in Park District Code.   

o Amendments are ok if they meet some exceptions. An example would be unexpected 



revenue, which would lead to higher operating expenses and hence amending the budget. 
o Appropriation is law 

Liz Stowick 
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  Budgets, Levies, and Bonds 
Learning Outcomes:   

 Think of appropriation as the authority/approval to spend money. 
 Budget amounts are not tied to the levy amounts. 
 A severability clause is used so that if there is an error somewhere in the budget, the remaining budget still 

remains and the error can be corrected (so you don’t have to completely re-do the budget). 
 Avoid using “Other” when re-appropriating funds, because you may have to explain how/what money was 

used. 
 Estimated revenue includes contract income (income that comes when we have a contract with the Village); 

leave out “miscellaneous” because it’s too vague when it comes to revenue. 
 Unexpected revenue?  follow the supplemental appropriation ordinance steps and explain to the public 

how the money was gotten. 
 Nothing special needs to be done on the budget side, if you want to increase the budget by a lot for the next 

year. The levy side will require special attention. 
 An appropriation transfer is the transferring of authority, not the actual transfer of money. 
 Talk to counsel before doing anything related to appropriation transfers. 
 Levies are subject to PTELL; you can levy up to the max but still be refused. 
 PTELL – no assessment caps 
 Levy amount  appropriation amount because money comes from two different tax years (Levy 2017 is 

paid in 2018). 
 Truth in Taxation   if this year’s levy exceeds last year’s by 5% or more. 
 Only follow what the statute requires for Truth in Taxation—don’t give extra information.   
 Document what you give to the press to make sure you’re in compliance and did everything right. 
 Didn’t finish going over PTELL and didn’t even begin talking about bonds. 

Day/Date:  Friday, January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  Distinguished Agency Accreditation  
Learning Outcomes:   

 Accreditation takes about 1-2 years to complete and is good for 5 years; it must be completed by the end of 
the second year. 

 Everybody needs to be on board or else we won’t succeed. 
 Applications are accepted until 4/1 of each year 
 Don’t get discouraged – use mentors! (Steve Cherveny is a mentor) 
 Must do a self-evaluation to learn if we are even able to begin the process. 

o Evaluation day with 5 members of IAPD/IPRA = 8 hours at agency 
 $500 application fee; covers the cost of the plaque 

o On evaluation day, agency also covers the cost of food/beverage and travel (if applicable) 
 Mentors check in 4-5 times a year to make sure everyone is on track 
 You must complete all mandatory items and as many optional items as you possibly can. Optional items 

give you the choice of choosing one or two that you can’t/don’t want to complete, but you cannot earn 
accreditation without completing almost all of the optional items. 

 A score of 470 is passing (500 total pts available) and items/sections are weighted. 
 Mandatory items must earn at least a 2 or 3 in order to pass due to how they are weighted. 
 Legal sections are pass/fail. 
 If an ED is allowed to approve something (e.g. pay increases), you must give supporting documentation 

(e.g. a job description) showing that it is literally part of the ED’s job. 
 If you choose to do this electronically, you have to provide 5 laptops and 5 copies of all of your data on 

evaluation day, for each of the IAPD/IPRA members that come. 
o Most people do hard-copies, maybe some items electronically. 



 Annual requirements must be documented within the year that you are doing the accreditation. 
 CAPRA is the national accreditation 

o You can apply to CAPRA if you pass the IL 
o 50% of items from IL accreditation will apply to CAPRA, so you’re halfway done when you start! 

 If you don’t pass your evaluation because of a few items, you have 30 days to fix the items so that you can 
get back on track and continue with the plan of accreditation. 

 
Liz Visteen 
Day/Date:  Thursday, January 19 
Session Name:  The Confidence Quadrant: Learn to Embrace Success and Failure (#10) 
Learning Outcomes:   
In this session, the speaker reviewed the four Confidence Quadrant types and the performance impact on each type. 
The speaker discussed why some people embrace success while others do not as well as why some people embrace 
failure and others do not. Participants learned which Confidence Quadrant they fall into as well as what to focus on 
to improve performance. If you want more confidence, focus on your success. If you ignore success, it will shrink 
your confidence and make you more timid. If you focus on your failure, you will be more adaptable and flexible. 
However, if you ignore your failure you will be more rigid.   
 
Day/Date:  Thursday, January 19 
Session Name:  The Leader in You – What is LWT? (#1002) 
Learning Outcomes:  Participants learned the importance of influence vs. a positional title. In other words, you do 
not need a title to be a leader. The group participated in several team exercises in which developing stronger work 
relationships and influencing others was the focus. The speaker provided a list of seven fundamental elements to put 
in your ‘Personal Leadership Toolbox”:  

1. Learning – read! 
2. Affirmations – repetition of positivity! 
3. Visualization – it starts with the mind! 
4. Journaling – become a clearer thinker! 
5. Goal Setting – setting and reconnecting on your goals! 
6. Exercise – get moving! 
7. Nutrition – what you eat determines how well you’ll perform! 

 
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  Active Threat Emergency Preparedness (#314) 
Learning Outcomes:  The speaker provided information how to begin the process of planning for emergency 
situations.  Preparing for these situations requires collaboration and a top-down commitment. Another key element 
in preparation is awareness and creating a culture of awareness. In addition to awareness staff training is key to 
prepare for these situations. The speaker provided a list of security resources and a Staff Skills Survey & Inventory 
worksheet to determine what training and background employees have in order to implement them into the 
emergency action plan. 
 
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  Active Adult Programming A-Z (#412) 
Learning Outcomes:  The speakers reviewed a long list of active adult (senior) programming ideas starting from A 
(i.e. aerobics) and ending with Z (i.e. Zumba). Some of the program ideas included Accessory Bingo, Brain Games, 
Dinning Out, Full Moon Hike, Mystery Tours, Tai Chi, Who’s Really Knocking.  
 
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  The Why and How of Sponsorship Sales (#903) 
Learning Outcomes:  The speakers of this session stressed the importance of knowing the “why” and “what”.  
Why do we need sponsorships?  

1. To Be Sustainable – fiscal responsibility and keeping track of revenue and expenses in order to set your 
goal. 

2. Engage the Community – partner with local non-profits, chambers, associations, businesses 
3. Remove Tax Dollar Reliance – release dollars for other projects; what else can your district accomplish.  



4. Give Back – consider profit sharing with a local partner; look internal to your own foundations. 
The “What”: 

 Traditional Sponsorships – special events, programs, facility 
 Creative Sponsorships – district wide engagement 

Know the value of What: 
 What is your district’s value? 
 Know your event/program 
 What do you bring to the table? 

o Access to all target markets 
o Impressions in all media categories 
o Goodwill 
o Reach in a variety of ways – print, experiential (on site), social media 

 
Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Public-Private Partnerships: How to Determine if They’re Right for You (#624) 
Learning Outcomes: In this session the speakers discussed what a P3s (Public-Private Partnership) is and how to 
determine if a project delivery method is the correct method. A P3 is a contractual agreement between a public 
agency and a private sector entity. Through this type of agreement, the skills and assets of each sector are shared in 
delivering a service or facility for use of the general public. The speakers discussed the process of implementing a 
project and importance of sustaining the facility. They presented several examples of P3s in the Chicagoland area. 
They also gave those who attended a manual with more details and an example of a P3 contract.   
 
Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Teen Service Projects: Helping Your Teens Help You! (#423) 
Learning Outcomes:  The presenters of this session discussed the teen service programs offered at their agencies. 
They discussed how to create a service-based teen program and how to integrate service series participants into 
existing programming and events. They provided a list of organizations in order to plan teen day-trip service 
projects. For the northern suburbs these included: Feed My Starving Children, Center for Enriched Living, Bernie’s 
Book Bank, Animal Education & Rescue, and Lake County Forest Preserve.  
 
Day/Date:  Saturday, January 21 
Session Name:  Athletic Events: Buzz, Bugs, and Brain Bank (#405) 
Learning Outcomes:  In this session, the presenter discussed key elements in hosting an athletic event and how to 
create a successful and unique event. She discussed the newest and more popular events and how to avoid the 
common ‘bugs’ that trip everyone up. The presenter asked me and several other professionals from other agencies to 
be available for the “brain bank” portion of the presentation to discuss what works and doesn’t work. Some 
questions that came up were how to determine how many shirts to order, registration deadlines and fees, and chip 
timing vs. bib timing.   
 
Naomi Garvett  
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  Inclusion Matters: Making Play a Priority for Everyone! 
Learning Outcomes:   

 Looking at you full play area and is equipped for all learning types 
o Disabled, children with sensory issues, Autistic children etc... 

 Remembering that play is not only physical but a social time for many children 
 Understanding what happens once the children reach the play area. There are many steps one has to take to 

get to or on a piece of equipment.  
 Are there safe areas for a child who may need or want alone time. Are these areas acceptable for all 

children to get to or fit into if needed. 
 Remembering play is not just for children but for adults too. 
 Create a place that allows everyone to play and not focusing on one type of disability, this helps make all 

feel welcome. 
 Look for ways to get your community involved. 

 



 
Day/Date:  Friday, January 20 
Session Name:  Unplug Illinois: communicate the value of Park and Recreation Through Education and 
Storytelling
Learning Outcomes:   

 Creating awareness to communities about the importance of play. 
 Encouraging communities to put down their phone and get outside. 
 The idea is to create : 

o healthier lifestyle 
o increase self esteem 
o get people moving 

 Unplug Illinois provides communities with all the items needed to get started including: 
o Templates of making ideas, letters to families and people in the community 
o How to’s 
o Contacts to help guide people through the process 
o Success stories of communities who have implemented  it. Glencoe included!  

 
 

 A good point brought up was that it is very hard these days to have people put their phones down, but they 
mentioned  how Pokémon Go was so popular this past summer. IT still had children, adults and families 
using their phones but had people out and about outside. So there are ways to include technology in outside 
activities and play. 

 
Day/Date:  Saturday January 21st   
Session Name:  From Mundane to Engaging, Jazz up your Training! 
Learning Outcomes:  

 It is important to make sure that training keep staffs attention. 
 Know your audience. 
 Make training interactive. 
 Give staff something to look forward to; some sort of prize, winning, end goal. 
 IDEAS: 

o GAME SHOW 
o ESCAPE ROOM- GAME INVLOVES TRAINING TOPICS 
o HAND ON TRAINING- LET STAFF GET INVOLVED 
o Allow staff to create their own “fun” 

 
 We got to be part of an interactive escape training that gave us ideas on how to bring “fun” into training for 

all…with a winning prize of a ring pop. 



 Little gift cards and give away go far- theses little incentives help staff remember their day and leave with a 
smile 

 
Jenny Runkel 
Day/Date:  January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  #505 Communicate for the Win 
Learning Outcomes:  Lori Klinka from Dramatic Impact led an interactive discussion on focusing the speakers 
attention on the audience and away from yourself to remove nervous tendencies and increase focus, getting buy in, 
using stories to make points (emotion + idea=action), and preparing handouts, outlines, and rehearsing at least five 
times in advance. 
 
Day/Date:  January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  #328 Power Tips and Tricks Using Microsoft Excel and Word 
Learning Outcomes:  Amil “Chip” Rose of Bright Insight Computer Instruction led a big hitter training starting with 
Excel conditional formatting, page breaks, and formulas. Also networked with a fellow parkie, who’s District has 
hired Chip twice to teach onsite with individual laptops and this individual has gone to see him speak several times 
for refreshers. As a software instructor, he was interactive and made the experience more fun than all other 
instructors. 
 
Day/Date:  January 20, 2017 
Session Name:  #112 Accreditation: A Blueprint to Excellence 
Learning Outcomes:  Speakers Mike Clark and Steve Eckelberry are both Distinguished Agency mentors with 100% 
records and have both completed D.A. at their agencies. The process, evaluation day, and scoring were reviewed. 
Going through the list of major items and some minor, Lisa Sheppard has been working on this checklist for the 
three years I have been at the District and it looks like we are on our way to achieving this goal. This goal is not just 
achieving an award, its achieving excellence in running the best business practices for Park Districts, staff, and the 
community. 
 
Paul Goedjen
Date: Thursday, 1/19/2017
Session: Marketing the Fitness Business 
Learning Outcomes: 
 Fastest growing demographic is 55+ 
 Use the word “Lifestyle” for marketing purposes 
 Majority of gym members will only travel from a distance of 6-8 minutes 

o This can be via walking, driving, or public transportation 
o Technical term is “Isochrone” 

 You will have a double penetration rate of people that live within 1 minute of the facility 
o Target this group with extra emphasis 

 It has been proven that the fitness business dips every 4 years during Presidential elections 
 A great way to connect with members is to do a yearly “Club Scrub” where you invite members out to assist 

with the deep clean of the fitness center 
 Use bright colors for your fitness facility 

o Think Jamba Juice 
 Figure out a way to provide an instant follow up on all membership leads 
 Don’t use the words “consultation” or “evaluation” instead use the phrase “Jump Start” 
 Thank you post cards to all membership sign ups 
 Flyers always read left to right and top to bottom 
 Have one feature in the room that immediately draws a person’s attention 

o Ex: Big Ass Fan 
 If you offer a weight loss challenge program, 80% of all entries will purchase personal training 
 Offer free trial passes 
 Members are retained at the point of sale 
 Offer orientations with personal trainers 



 
Date: Friday, 1/20/17  
Session: Making Fitness Functional 
Learning Outcomes

 Cardio facing windows when possible 
 Place seated bikes in front of treadmills 

o Bikes are lower and therefore provide a staggered level view 
 Make sure cardio is the first thing people see when entering the facility 

o This is softer on the eyes 
 Have shared ADA accessibility points for multiple pieces of equipment 

o This saves space and also creates extra walk ways within the area 
 Have a yearly “shut down” week for deep cleaning purposes 

o GPD would do this during our current August shut down week 
 Find something that can be the facilities “wow factor” 
 If removing / replacing equipment make sure to do it during the facility shut down week 

o This can help give the facility a new look  
o Can also help reduce the shock of someone’s favorite piece of equipment being removed 

 Sometimes less is more – you don’t want to over fill an area 
o Crowded spaces are often times inefficient and an eye sore 

 Have embedded TV’s in all cardio equipment 
o Current market trends are moving towards each unit having their own entertainment console 

             
Date: Friday, 1/20/17  
Session: Navigating Group Exercise & Group   Training 
Learning Outcomes

 Group Exercise
o Musically driven
o Class consists of a routine
o Minimal individualized attention
o Should be geared to the general public

 Group Training
o More focused individual attention
o Smaller class size, average 3 participants
o Exercises can be consist of more specialized movements

 Top Trends for 2017
o Wearable technology
o Body weight training
o HIIT
o Educated and experienced fitness professionals
o Strength training
o Group Fitness
o Exercise as medicine

 Monetary value of each gym member is calculated by the following…
o Gross revenue / total number of members

 Change is difficult, not changing is fatal

Date: Saturday, 1/21/17  
Session: Assessing the Added Value of Public-Private Partnerships 
Learning Outcomes

 Delaying capital projects because of lack of funding can lead to a further deterioration of infrastructure, 
which in turn leads to an eventual more expensive project 

 Budget shortfalls often prompt public organizations to look into different funding options 
o Public-Private Partnership is one of these funding methods 

 Primary obstacle to establishing a PPP is the perceived cost of money 



 Well set up PPP’s retain a high level of public control and oversight 
 Private financing can result in time and cost savings 

o Maximization of public and private sector strengths 
o Reduction / sharing of risks 
o Reduction in public capital investment 
o Mobilization of excess or underutilized assets 
o Improvement of efficiencies / faster project completion / guaranteed maintenance 
o Better environmental compliance 
o Improved service to the community while maintaining public oversight 
o Improved cost effectiveness 

 Common PPP Myths 
o PPP’s are just another methods of privatization, leading the public sector to lose control over its 

assets 
o A PPP can work to meet any infrastructure need 
o Private money offered thrpigh a PPP is a good way for the government to access “quick cash” to 

close budget gaps 
o Private partners make excessive returns as a result of PPP’s 
o PPP’s are difficult and expensive to negotiate, thus negating their benefits 

             
Date: Saturday, 1/20/17  
Session: 75 Fitness Promotions in 75 Minutes  
Learning Outcomes 
 “Summer Slim Down” 
  Promote beginning January 1 
 Sale on the facility’s anniversary 
 Corporate or organization weight loss challenge 
 Free entry / free training days 
 Offer an incentive for Facebook or Four Square check ins 
 Feature a gym member weekly or monthly 

o Give a small bio / their fitness goals  / favorite aspects of the gym / etc 
 Host events within the space  
 Use testimonials 

Chris Leiner 
Day/Date: Friday 8:15-9:30  
Session Name: #220 Capital Projects: Approaches for Improving Delivery Efficiency & Success 
(Park/Natural Resources Track) 
Learning Outcomes: This session was geared towards Parks Superintendents/Project Managers with an emphasis on 
early project planning, fund raising and sustainability as a method for cost reduction. The presenter’s case study was 
a private indoor tennis center that had been condemned and the conversion process the Park District went through to 
re-purpose the facility in a community center model. Structural members and utilities were reused even though much 
of the building was demolished. 

Day/Date: Friday 9:45-10:00 
Session Name: #144 Turmoil to Stability (Boardmanship Track) 
Learning Outcomes: This particular session tracked an agency’s history through a period of unprecedented political 
turmoil which was a result of illegal activities at the Board level. Attendee’s heard first-hand accounts on how 
sweeping agency wide changes were made and a campaign of disinformation was perpetrated by several complicit 
commissioners resulting in illegal purchasing, bid rigging and nepotism. The eventual result was state intervention 
and a grass roots community campaign to oust a Village trustee that was appointed Executive Director without an 
interview process. Presenters made recommendations on Board level policies designed to protect the long-term 
integrity and financial stability of a park district 



Day/Date: Saturday 10:15-11:30 
Session Name:  #121 Consolidation Issues Impacting Park Districts (Governance/Legal Track) 
Learning Outcomes: This presenters informed attendees on the typical process that agency consolidation can take. 
This included consolidation that was beneficial to the community and tax payers as well as consolidation that was 
motivated by outside political influence, uniformed watch dog groups and units of local government unable to work 
together.  The round table session during the presentation openly discussed new community expectations that units 
of local government work together.  

Day/Date: Saturday 12:30-1:45  
Session Name #221 Up a Creek: Naturally Restoring Drainage in a Park Setting (Park/Natural Resource 
Track) 
Learning Outcomes: Presenters discussed using man-made structure to mimic natural features in directing a stream 
through a large natural area. The stream bed had become clogged with invasive species that caused flow to decrease. 
As a result a nearby farm and subdivision had begun to flood during the rainy season. Presenters informed attendees 
about upstream and downstream storm water laws and the partnership process that prevented a slash and burn 
approach to clearing the stream. 

Day/Date: Saturday 2:00-3:15 
Session Name #132 Best Management Practices for Natural Areas (Park/Natural Resource Track) 
Learning Outcomes: Presenters outlined the approach used to convert an existing 36 hole golf course into a 18 hole 
and 9 hole course with excellent storm water management practices. The original course was prone to very heavy 
flooding and saw major interruptions in service yearly based on weather conditions. Through a major capital 
improvement process the level of the course was raised and that coupled with man-made ponds, streams and wet 
lands prevented the course from future flood damage 

Day/Date: Saturday 3:30-4:45 
Session Name: #632 Energy Efficiency Incentives for Illinois Park Districts (Facilities Track)  
Learning Outcomes:The presenter outlined multiple energy grants available to Illinois Municipalities including the 
times lines, submission criteria and where to look for support. It was informative and offered a round table 
opportunity for district representatives to discuss current ongoing efficiency projects in their own respective park 
districts 

 



Glencoe Park District / 999 Green Bay Road / Glencoe, IL  60022 / (847) 835-3030 / fax (847) 835-4942 
www.glencoeparkdistrict.com 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Contact: Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing and Communications, Glencoe Park District

(847) 835 7537

Glencoe Park District Director Named Professional of the Year
Excellence Recognized at Annual Conference

The Illinois Park & Recreation Association (IPRA) honored Lisa Sheppard with the 2017 IPRA Professional
Award. The award winners were announced during the IAPD/IPRA Soaring to New Heights Conference
Awards Luncheon on Friday, January 20, 2017.

The Professional Award is given to the nominee who has made an impact within the parks and
recreation industry and has made a significant impact in the community they serve. It is an honor to
announce that Lisa Sheppard was selected as the top nominee for this prestigious award.

Throughout her career, Lisa has been very active in IPRA and has held many leadership positions,
including that of IPRA Board Member, Recreation Section Director, Teen Committee Chairperson, and
President of Suburban Park and Recreation Association (SPRA).

Lisa is a life long learner and is always asking questions, which has helped her grow throughout her
career. She first served as a Recreation Supervisor at the Rolling Meadows Park District, and then moved
up to serve as Superintendent of Recreation at the Gurnee Park District. In February of 2013, she
became the Executive Director of the Glencoe Park District. As the Executive Director, she led the
development the District’s Master Plan, along with the revitalization of Friends Park, Shelton Park, Kalk
Park, and Melvin Berlin Park.

Lisa is active member in her various communities. She is a founding member of Gurnee’s Healthy
Communities, Healthy Youth Organization, which is designed to develop healthy, responsible, caring and
competent youth. In addition to being a volunteer youth sports coach, she is also Vice President of the
Chicago Chapter of the National Organization of Women in Leisure Services, which is designed to
provide a forum for women in leisure and community services to exchange ideas and enrich their
professional skills.

“As a leader in every sense of the word, her vision, integrity, and ability to build outstanding teams has
earned her the respect of her staff and colleagues,” said Carol Mensinger, Glencoe Park District Director
of Finance and Human Resources. “We are pleased to see Lisa Sheppard of the Glencoe Park District
receive IPRA’s Professional of the Year Award.”

Established in 1944, the Illinois Park and Recreation Association’s mission is to provide and promote
exceptional standards of education, networking, and resources for all professionals in the Illinois park,
recreation, and conservation communities.
For more information about IPRA, its board and mission, please visit the IPRA website: www.ILipra.org.
# # #



IX. Action Item A & B

Approval of GYS & SNAP Stipend Requests
Glencoe Park District

February 28 Board Meeting





The Winnetka/Glencoe Youth Organization will operate four separate programs, which run 
independently but are brought together for collaborative programming: 

1. Glencoe Center Programming:
Hours (Mondays-Thursdays (3-6 PM) Fridays (3-9 PM) Saturdays (5-9 PM) 

A middle school and high school drop-in center in the current GYS building. Just as GYS 
is operating currently, the center will be open 6 days a week (Monday-Saturday), for 
after-school middle school programming during the week, while serving high school 
students on the weekends, with each Saturday being an outside program. Outside of our 
regular hours, the Glencoe site will continue to host a variety of programs, from 
community service outings, to laser tag, to mentoring opportunities and homework help. 
GYS also has an independent youth board, charged with being leaders in the community 
while creating social and community service outings. 

2. The Special Needs Adult Pals (SNAP) program:
Hours: Tues (6-9 PM) 

Run out of the current GYS building on Tuesday nights, the SNAP program provides 
recreation, support, and advocacy for adults with disabilities. The Winnetka/Glencoe 
Youth Organization will continue to oversee this program just as GYS does currently. It 
is a goal of the strategic planning to work to find ways to expand this program’s scope 
(particularly working with the New Trier High School transitions program).   

What are the demographics of the clients served in the prior year? 
(breakdown by community).
15 16 Roster Breakdown (GYS)

Hometown # of Youth

Glencoe 191 (70%)

Winnetka 18 (7%)

Wilmette 26 (9%)

Kenilworth 2 (1%)

Northfield 3 (1%)

Other 33 (12%)

TOTAL 273

Grade Male Female T

5th/6th 26 30 56

7th 56 8 64

8th 25 4 31

Freshman 10 11 21

Sophomore 11 8 19

Junior 24 6 30

Senior 23 16 39

Grad 11 2 13

TOTAL 198 64 273



# TEEN Center Budget 2015 2016 (actuals) 2016 17 2017 18

5000 Income
5100 Grants
5110 New Trier Township 38000 35000 35000
5120 Village of Glencoe 9000 9000 9000
5130 Glencoe Park District 10000 10000 10000
5140 Navigant 0 0
5160 Other
5200 Supporting Organizations

Religious
5210 St. Elizabeth's 0 200 200
5220 Carmel Presbyterian 100 100 100
5230 Glencoe Union Church 0 100 100
5240 North Shore Methodi 625 625 625

North congregation Israel 180 180 180

Civic Organizations
Family Service of Glencoe 200 200 200

5250 Women's Library Club
5260 Men's Library Club
5300 Foundations & Trusts
5310 Glencoe Educ Foundati
5320 Rochman Foundation 0
5330 Goldschmidt FF 0
5340 Cole Foundation 0
5350 Highland Pk Bank Found 1000 1000 1000
5360 Takiff Family Foundatn 0 0 0
5400 Corporate Contributions 0

Other 100 100 500
Wintrust Bank 236 200 200

Total

5500 Outreach Campaigns
Board Donations 0 2000 2000
Phoneathon 1500 1000

5510 Past Donor Mailing 6401 7000 8000
5520 Targeted Village Residents Appeal 4000 5000 6000
5530 Giving Tuesday 0 0 0
5540 Other 0 0 0
5600 Vending Income 1892 2000 2000
5700 Fundraising Events
5710 July 4 615 700 500
5720 Movies on the Green 60 100 100
5730 Harvestfest 837 2000 2000
5740 TC Board Fundraiser 1852 2500 3000
5750 Participant Fundraiser 160 250 250
5770 Other 100 0 0
5800 Other Income 155 150 150

Total Income 75519 79905 82105



6500 Expenses
6600 Operations
6610 Telecommunications 1612 1700 1700
6620 Utilities 1593 1700 1700
6630 Web Expenses 218 150 150
6640 Mailing Expenses 1190 750 750
6700 Business Expenses 110 88 88

Office Supplies 282 250 250
6710 Registration fees 25 25 25
6720 Accounting fees 833 834 834
6730 Marketing fees 784 1000 1000
6800 Insurance Expense
6810 Worker's Comp 1059 1200 1200
6820 General Liability 1973 2000 2000
6830 D & O Insurance 515 415 415
6840 Off Premises Ins
6900 Facilities & Equipment 634 450 450
7000 Payroll
7010 Employee payroll 48982 54000 56000
7020 Payroll Taxes 4446 6600 7600
7030 Payroll Service 659 560 560
7040 Benefits 4216 4600 4300
7050 Bookkeeper 2998 3000 3000
7060 Bonuses 500 500 500
7070 Hiring Expenses 66 100 100
7100 Program Expenses 2476 3000 3000

Total Expenses 75178 82922 85622

Into Reserves 3017 3517
NET





































































IX. Action Item C

Approval of GJHP Stipend Request

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District Funding Request 
 
Glencoe Junior High Project 
January 11, 2017 
Contact: Audra Donnelly, Executive Director 
Address: 620 Greenwood Ave., Glencoe, IL 60022 
Email: audra@gjhp.org 
Phone: (847)835-7623 
 
AMOUNT REQUESTED: $12,000 
 
Glencoe Junior High Project provides opportunities for Glencoe middle school students to 
engage with the community for the purpose of fostering socially aware, civic-minded and 
community-oriented individuals. Operating for over 45 years, the Glencoe Junior High Project 
was developed by parents and business leaders in the community to address concerns over local 
vandalism. The purpose of the organization was to provide worthwhile recreational activities for 
students. It did this through the formation of an umbrella organization that coordinated four 
separate, yet jointly governed programs, one of which was GJHP’s predecessor, the “Junior High 
Club”. Today, GJHP is made up of 4 parts; 1) The Oasis 2) Social Activities & Events 3) Civic 
Engagement 4) The Preforming Arts Program. 
 
GJHP has adapted over the years to meet the changing needs of students. Five years ago, the 
organization adopted a direction-changing vision and strategic plan. This strategic plan fine-
tuned GJHP's structure to better highlight and support the four programming areas. The plan’s 
main strategic directives are as follows: (1) Expand the Civic Engagement Program to 
incorporate an education component for the participants as well as new ways in measuring and 
evaluating success/feedback from students and their parents. (2) Build increased capacity of 
fundraising by expanding the ‘appeal’ to include new marketing opportunities to help increase 
donor commitment. (3) Engage with new partners (other local non-profits and professionals) 
increasing the level of expertise offered to meet student’s social and emotional developmental 
needs; subsequently creating a wider range of after school programming. (4) Implement annual 
reviews, completed by a Student Board, of programs, participant’s experience and assessments to 
keep pace with continually changing needs of the organization.  
 
How funds were used this past year: 
The funds from this past year were used towards employing two full-time Youth Directors. With 
the growth of the program, it is necessary to employ two full time Youth Directors to ensure the 
success and safety of the program. Having two full-time directors allowed us to continue to 
provide more programs, new social activities and events, and offer more civic engagement 
opportunities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



How funds will be used if approved:  
We respectfully continue to request funding to keep the organization up to date on the needs and 
desires of the students and community as a whole. The programs provided by GJHP impact 
students at a particularly critical time in their lives. The GJHP has the ability to provide 
opportunities that, in the absence of the GJHP, would not exist in our community in any similar 
capacity.  
 
GJHP will continue to implement new programs, add additional service organizations, increase 
the number of volunteer hours, and increase the number of collaborations with local partners in 
our community. We take pride in the number of collaborative programs we run with local 
organizations, as we know a community working together can accomplish far more than a single 
organization. Our newest collaboration with Family Service of Glencoe, "A Legacy Project: 
Connecting Generations Through Story", is a program that will pair middle school students with 
a senior citizen from the Glencoe community to interview each other with the goal of learning 
about different generations, creating friendships and helping the senior citizens leave a lasting 
mark on the world. 
 
As in previous years, if approved, the funding will be used to sustain the salaries of our two full-
time Youth Directors. With the growth of the program, we feel it is necessary to employ two full 
time Youth Directors to ensure the success and safety of the program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Glencoe Junior High Project Daily Log 
 
Monday 
9:00am-10:30am Administrative responsibilities  
10:30am-2:00pm Oasis – student drop in center 
2:00pm-3:30pm Weekly meeting with GJHP Co-Presidents 
4:00pm-5:00pm Book Buddies  
 
Tuesday 
10:00am-10:30am Administrative responsibilities  
10:30am-2:00pm Oasis – student drop in center 
2:00pm-3:30pm Administrative responsibilities 
3:30pm-7:00pm Civic Engagement  
 
Wednesday 
9:00am-10:30am Administrative responsibilities  
10:30am-2:00pm Oasis – student drop in center 
2:00pm-3:30pm Administrative responsibilities or meetings with outside organizations  
4:00pm-5:00pm Book Buddies  
 
Thursday 
10:00am-10:30am Administrative responsibilities  
10:30am-2:00pm Oasis – student drop in center 
2:00pm-3:30pm Administrative responsibilities 
3:30pm-7:00pm Civic Engagement  
 
Friday 
10:00am-10:30am Administrative responsibilities/monthly full board meetings 
10:30am-2:00pm Oasis – student drop in center  
2:00pm-3:30pm Administrative responsibilities or meetings with outside organizations  
3:30pm-8:00pm Civic Engagement or Social Activates  
 
**Please note civic engagement outings change from week to week so start and end times vary 
depending on the location and organization.  
 
Administrative responsibilities include: 

• Answering all GJHP related emails/phone calls 
• Creating monthly newsletters 
• Creating and sending daily e-blasts about programming and events 
• Updating GJHP social media accounts 
• Creating marketing materials for all GJHP programming and events  
• Meetings with outside organizations  
• Daily organization and facilitation of GJHP 
• Writing grants and other funding request forms  
• Planning and preparing weekly activities and programs 
• Arranging and scheduling Civic Engagement outings 
• Meetings with school administration, including school social workers  

 



Glencoe Junior High Project Programs 
• Back to School BBQ 
• Pokémon Go! Scavenger Hunt 
• Harvest Fest 
• Halloween Hoopla 
• Bake Sale with GYS 
• Open Oasis  
• Ping Pong Tournaments 
• Valentine’s Day Cookie Decorating 
• Girls nights – self-defense and yoga classes 
• Teen Skate Night at Watts 
• 6th Grade Dance  
• Open Mic Night/Battle of the Bands  
• 8th Grade Conversations  
• Beach Bash  

 
Glencoe Junior High Project Civic Engagement Organizations 

• A Just Harvest Soup Kitchen 
• Bernie’s Book Bank 
• Book Buddies at the Glencoe Public Library 
• CJE Senior Life 
• Cradles to Crayons 
• Glencoe Community Garden 
• New Trier Township Food Pantry 
• Project Linus 
• Uptown Café 
• A Legacy Project: Connecting Generations Through Story 

 
 

 



























IX. Action Item D & E

Approval of Designs for West Park & Astor
Place Park

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glenc

To: B
From: L

SUBJEC

The Spec
approval
was secu
wonderfu
West also
staff feel

The conc
added as 
secured f
of the sha
concepts

The 5-12
footprint
surfacing
large gro
the existi

The Disc
explanati

Backgrou
The term
young pe
nature to
depressio
and emot
engage, n

The Boa
nature –
and sens
Playgrou

coe Park Distric

Board of Com
Lisa Sheppard

CT:  West Pla

cial Projects 
of the West

ured.  We hav
ul.  The desi
o responded 
like their id

cepts include
alternate to 

from other so
ared playgro
are included

2 school-age 
of the playg

g.  This expa
oups of child
ing natural to

covery Area
ion. 

und
m “nature def
eople becom
 some of the

on. Research
tional growth
not just on a 

ard of the G
– for their ow
se of commu
und” at We

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners
d, Executive

ayground De

Committee
t Playground
ve been wor
gns were sho
positively.  

deas were con

e a 5-12 play
determine if

ources.  The
ound costs an
d in the Boar

playground
ground from 
anded footpri
dren at one tim
opography a

a is a unique 

ficit disorder
me disconnect
e most distur
h shows that 
h. The outdo
computer sc

lencoe Park
wn health a
unity direct 
st Park. 

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

esigns

based on dis
d Design Con
rking with Sc
own to the P
We have no
nsidered and

yground and 
f it fits into t

e project will
nd will be pa
rd Packet an

focuses of u
3,310 to 5,6

int allows fo
me.  The des

and is ADA a

area for the 

r” was coine
ted from the
rbing childho
free play is 

oors provide
creen, but th

k District, in
and well-bei

 Park Distr

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

scussion at t
ncepts as pre
chool Distric
PTO and they
ot heard any 
d earlier idea

a Discovery
the $550,000
l also include
aid for solely
nd on our we

upper body m
600 square fe
or more area 
sign incorpo
accessible. 

Glencoe Par

d by Richard
e natural wor
ood trends, s
critical for c

es a multi-sen
hrough sight,

n order to in
ng and for t
rict staff to d

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

two committ
esented.  Ext
ct 35 and the
y were thrill
negative fee

as were inco

y Area.  The 
0 project bud
e the asphalt
y by the Sch
ebsite. 

movement an
feet and uses
 to run and p

orates slides 

ark District, s

d Louv to de
rld. He links
such as obes
children’s br
nsory smorg
, sound, touc

ntroduce ch
the develop
develop a D

5-3030 / fax (

tee meetings
tensive com
ey think the 
led.  The stu
edback or co
orporated.

 “Tree Thea
dget or if oth
t play area b

hool District.

nd has expan
 permeable p
play and can
and climbin

so deserves a

escribe what
s this lack of
sity, attention
rain growth, 
gasbord of op
ch, and smel

hildren to th
ment of the

Discovery Ar

847) 835-4942

Date:  2-1

s recommend
mmunity inpu

playground
dents and sta

oncern.  Scho

atre” will be 
her funds are
but this is not
.  Design 

nded the 
poured in pl

n accommod
ng features in

a little more 

t happens wh
f interaction 
n disorders a
body growth
pportunities
l.

he wonders o
eir characte
rea or “Nat

2

15-17

ds
ut
is
aff at 
ool

e
t part 

ace
ate
nto

hen
with
and
h,
to

of
r

tural



    

Glencoe Park District / 999 Green Bay Road / Glencoe, IL  60022 / (847) 835-3030 / fax (847) 835-4942 
www.glencoeparkdistrict.com 

The Discovery Area will be a bright, welcoming area, sized for young children, where they can 
explore and interact with the natural world around them.  It will be sustainable and use recycled 
natural materials that will come from the Glencoe area. 

Grassy mounds, created with material excavated on site, will protect a free-play area where 
children will discover seats, tables and steppers made from local trees, with boulders and logs to 
climb, and tree trunks that will be left to slowly decompose on site, introducing children to the 
transformational force of entropy.  Bird feeders and native plantings will attract birds for the 
children to observe and will allow the children to experience the natural world authentically. 
New features will be added over time. The Discovery Area will be organic and change reflecting 
the natural phenomena of the physical world.

“WE HAVE BEEN TRYING TO ISOLATE OURSELVES FROM NATURE FOR MILLENIA…AND 
WE HAVE ALMOST TOTALLY SUCCEEDED” 

Recommendation:  Approve the West Playground conceptual designs as submitted and begin the 
detail drawings and bidding process. 



Glenc

To: B
From: L

SUBJEC

The Spec
approval
They dire
so that th
west.

Commun
concepts

Recomm
wishbone

coe Park Distric

Board of Com
Lisa Sheppard

CT:  Astor Pl

cial Projects 
of the Astor

ected staff to
he play struct

nity Input wa
are included

mendation:  A
e sand box a

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners
d, Executive

ayground D

Committee,
r Playground
o work with 
ture will go 

as secured an
d in the Boar

Approve the A
and to change

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

esigns

, based on di
d Design Co
Altamanu to
east and we

nd the design
rd Packet an

Astor Playgr
e the orienta

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

iscussion at t
oncept, Optio
o change the
st across the

ns have been
nd on our we

round conce
ation of the p

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

two commit
on 2 with the
e playground
e play lot and

n on the Park
ebsite. 

eptual design
playground a

5-3030 / fax (

ttee meetings
e wishbone s
d orientation 
d the swings

k District we

ns, option 2 w
as discussed

847) 835-4942

Date:  2-1

s, recommen
sandbox con
to be revers

s will run eas

ebsite. Desig

with the 
.

2

15-17

nds
ncept.
sed
st

gn



West Park and Astor Park Playground Renovations 
February 13th 2017 



Delighted to be Here!!! 



West Park Playground :  Existing Site Aerial yg g



West Park Playground :  Projects 

1 2 

3 

1. School Blacktop      2 Playground   3. Discovery Area 

yg j



West Park Playground Existing Site Aerial yg g



West Park Playground Existing Trees yg g



West Park Playground Existing Site Aerial 

Garden 

Black Top 

Play Equipment  

Play Equipment  



West Park Playground : School Black Top yg p



West Park Playground : Painted Black Top Examples yg p p



West Park Playground : School Black Top Proposals yg p p

Full Junior Court & Multiple Games 3 Hoops and Simplified Layout 



West Park Playground Drainage 

Erosion due to drainage  
and children’s desire line 

yg g



West Park Playground Issues: Slope, Drainage and Erosion yg p , g



West Park Playground Issues: Slope, Drainage and Erosion yg p , g



West Park Playground Issues: Slope, Drainage and Erosion yg p , g



West Park Playground Issues: Slope, Drainage and Erosion yg p , g



West Park Playground Issues: Slope, Drainage and Erosion yg p , g



West Park Playground : School and PD Priorities 

• Sustainability 
• Accessibility 
• Upper body/Overhead events 
• Buddies Bench 
• Use poured-in-place. 
• Minimal interactive play panels for 5-12 
• Potential Discovery Area to the north of the tennis courts 2-5 
  
Not Acceptable: 
• No swings  
• No Metal Slides 
• Tube Slides/Crawl Tunnels 
• Bubble Panels 
• Roller and Metal slides 
• Wooden Components 
• Diggers 
• Spring toys 
 
  

yg



West Park Playground : School and PD Priorities   
School and Park District Staff Stated: 
• Topography to be highlighted   
• Slides and climbing features in topography  
• Slides at grade if possible 
 
 
• School serves 8-10 year olds, requested separate 2-5 year old area 
• Nature/Discovery area could serve mainly 2-5 year olds  
• Park District could provide woodchips, logs cut into different sizes for 

climbing, seats, tables, etc.  
• Would include boulders  

 
 

Constructions start date June 12th. Completion before August 10th 
   

yg



West Park Playground : Examples School Liked yg p

Climbing Features and Unusual Paths  



West Park Playground : Examples Long Slides yg p g

All liked the concept but needs lots of slope 



West Park Playground : Examples Slopes Sites yg p p

Unfortunately we do not have this much slope 



West Park Playground : Examples Slopes Sites yg p p

Total existing slope is 5.5 feet over entire playground 



West Park Playground : Proposed Plan yg p

Shed 



West Park Playground : Proposed Plan yg p

Curb & Mulch around Tree 

Fall Zone  

ADA path to slides 



West Park Playground : View Looking West yg g



West Park Playground : View Looking West yg g

OmniSpin 



West Park Playground : View Looking South East yg g



West Park Playground : View Looking North  yg g



West Park Playground : ADA Equipment  yg q p



West Park Playground : Looking North East  yg g

Colors not updated this slide 



Comparison Existing and Proposed p g p

  
  
Existing Playground Area – 3,310 S.F. 
  
Proposed Playground Area – 5,600 S.F. 



Issues: Drainage and Erosion g

Erosion could be prevented by adding a fence around this space  
and timbers from Astor across slope and planting but it is outside of the scope 



Issues: Drainage and Erosion g

Erosion could be prevented by adding a fence around this space  
and timbers from Astor across slope and planting but it is outside of the scope 



Potential Deck -  Tree Protection Not included in the Budget g

Tree Protection, Central Feature, Stage, Gathering Place  



Potential Deck -  Tree Protection Not included in the Budget g

Tree Protection, Central Feature, Stage, Gathering Place  



Something to think about in the Long Term : Exhibit Wetlands g g

Consider adding a wetland for stormwater 
and to provide a landscape exhibit for the kids 

And habitat for birds and Insects  



WE HAVE BEEN TRYING TO ISOLATE OURSELVES 
FROM NATURE FOR MILLENIA……… 
 
AND WE HAVE ALMOST TOTALLY SUCCEEDED 



West Park Discovery Area : Site Proposed Discovery Area y p y



West Park Discovery Area : Site Proposed Discovery Area y p y



West Park Discovery Area : Drainage Issues  y g



West Park Discovery Area : Drainage Issues  y g

Water in carpark flows north 
And ponds in NE corner 

Site drains towards future Discovery Area 

Old Playground was removed, site is slightly below surrounding grade, water ponds 



Unstructured Outdoor Recreation: Why is it important  

National Movement  2006 
No Child Left Inside® is a promise to introduce children to the wonders of nature – for 
their own health and well-being, for the future of environmental conservation, and for 
the preservation of the beauty, character and community.” 



“For young children, it's mostly about unstructured play.”  

 
 

 
 

      Today Scott Sampson of Dinosaur Train and Curator at Denver Museum of Nature  
 
“Research shows that free play is critical for brain growth, body 
growth, and emotional growth. The outdoors provides this multi-
sensory smorgasbord of opportunities to engage, not just on a 
computer screen, but through sight, sound, touch, and smell.” 
 



“But you have to let your kids get messy.”  

 
 

 
 



WHY CAN’T OUR KIDS HAVE SOMETHING LIKE THIS? 



Inspiration p

Curving Paths, Mounds, Lots of Trees, Keep Fallen Trees, add Boulders  



Inspiration p



West Park Discovery Area: What is it? 

The Discovery Area will be a bright, welcoming area, sized for young children, 
where they can explore and interact with the world around them.  It is comprised of 
natural materials: mounds, nooks, wooden steppers, seats/tables, boulders and 
logs to climb, and tree trunks that will slowly decompose introducing children to 
the  transformational force of entropy. 

Coonley School Mills Park 



West Park Discovery Area: What is it? 

Mills Park 



West Park Discovery Area : Elements y

Conservatory Garden Oak Park  Tree Seat Mills Park Oak Park  



And Think Like a Child: Create a Landscape Narrative 

 
 

 
 



And Think Like a Child. Create a Landscape Narrative 

 
 

 
 

Berms and Distinctive Planting 



West Park Discovery Area : Form y

Using all excavated material on-site 

Plan view  



West Park Discovery Area : Elements y



West Park Discovery Area : Elements y



West Park Discovery Area : Elements y



West Park Discovery Area : Elements y



Long Term g

Boulders with Petroglyphs 



If We Get More Ambitious 

Seating and Art Pieces Perhaps over Time 



If We Get More Ambitious 

Seating and Art Pieces Perhaps over Time 



Astor Park Playground Renovation yg



Astor Park Playground Renovation yg



Astor Park Playground Renovation yg



Astor Park Playground Renovation Option 2 yg p



Astor Park Playground Renovation Option 2 yg p

We will ensure the equipment doesn’t make too much noise 



Astor Park Playground Renovation Option 4 yg p



Astor Park Playground Renovation Option 4 yg p



Astor Park Playground Renovation Option 2 and 4 yg p







IX. Action Item F

Approval of the Resolution Repealing
Resolution No. 636 and Amending the

Glencoe Park District Policy on the Third
Party Construction on Park District Property

Policy

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glenc

To: B

From: L

SUBJEC
Policy on

Resolutio
The com
the requi
Park Dist
of land is

The com
process d
Park Com
Statutes.

Chair Pa
new reso
input by 
Land to 
other law

Recomm

Staff reco

coe Park Distric

Board of Com

Lisa Sheppard

CT:  Resoluti
n the sale of 

on No. 636 w
mittee found
rements for 
trict and its r
s being conte

mmittee reco
defined by a
mmissioners
The content

alatnik direct
olution to th

Ancel Glin
Non-govern

ws then in eff

mendation: 

ommends th

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners

d, Executive

ion Repealin
park district

was discusse
d that Resolu
the sale of la
residents to 
emplated.  

ognized that
applicable st
s Land Sale
t of those law

ted staff to 
he Board for
nk, Glencoe 
nmental Enti
fect which g

hat the Board

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

ng Resolution
t Land to a N

ed at the Janu
ution No. 63
and by a par
follow the ap

t the sale o
tatutes, whi
 Act, and p

ws may be re

update the p
r approval.  
Park Distric
ities compli

govern the sa

d repeal Reso

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

n No. 636 an
Non-Governm

uary 3, 2017
6 does not c

rk district an
pplicable law

f land to a
ch may incl

perhaps, othe
evised by the

policy accor
 The attach

ct attorneys. 
es with any

ale of such la

olution No. 6

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

nd Amendin
mental Entit

7 Personnel a
conform to c
nd it is in the
ws that are c

any non-gov
lude the Illi
er statutes w
e Legislature

rding to app
hed resolutio
 The policy

y and all sta
and to any no

636 and then

5-3030 / fax (

ng the Glenco
ty

and Policy C
current laws 
e best interes
current at the

vernmental e
inois Park D
within the I
e from time 

plicable laws
on was deve

y of the Sale
atutes, rules,
on-governm

n adopt Reso

847) 835-4942

Date:  2-1

oe Park Dist

Committee.
prescribing

st of the 
e time a sale 

entity involv
District Code
Illinois Com
to time.  

s and presen
eloped with 
e of Park Di
, regulations

mental entity.

olution No. 8

2

15-17

trict 

ves a 
e, the 

mpiled

nt the 
staff

istrict
s and 

858.



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT  
RESOLUTION No. 858 

A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION #636 AND AMENDING THE 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT POLICY ON THE SALE OF PARK DISTRICT 

LAND TO A NON-GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Illinois law, the Glencoe Park District ("Park District") 

holds its land in trust for the use and enjoyment of all citizens of the State of Illinois; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners ("Park Board") of the Park 
District believes that all park land within the Park District has value and that a balanced 
park system includes parks of various sizes, locations and uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, applicable sections of the Park District Code, the Park 

Commissioners Land Sale Act, and perhaps other sections of the Illinois Compiled 
Statutes grant the Park District the authority to sell park land under certain specified 
terms and conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois legislature, from time to time, has amended and may 
further amend, the statutes applicable to the sale of land by a Park District; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, on June 17, 2003, adopted Resolution #636, which 
established certain procedures the Board would be required to follow prior to selling 
any land, including conducting an advisory referendum; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds and determines that Resolution #636 does not 
conform to current laws prescribing the requirements for the sale of land by a park 
district and it is in the best interest of the Park District and its residents to follow the 
applicable laws that are current at the time a sale of land is being contemplated;  

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Park 
Commissioners (the "Board") of the Glencoe Park District as follows: 

Section 1. The Park Board finds that all of the recitals contained in the 
preamble to this Resolution are true and correct and does hereby incorporate them 
into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Resolution #636 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

Section 3.  The Glencoe Park District Policy on The Sale of Park District Land to 
a Non-Governmental Entity is hereby amended to state as follows: 



“1.0 Statement of Purpose 

The Board of Park Commissioners finds it may be of benefit to the residents of the 
Glencoe Park District to permit the conveyance or sale of Park District land that is no 
longer needed or useful. 

   2.0 General Guidelines 

The Board recognizes that the sale of land to any non-governmental entity 
involves a process defined by applicable statutes, which may include the Illinois Park 
District Code, the Park Commissioners Land Sale Act, and perhaps, other statutes within 
the Illinois Compiled Statutes. The content of those laws may be revised by the 
Legislature from time to time. Therefore, the GPD Board of Commissioners intends its 
Policy of the Sale of park district land to non-governmental entities to be that the Board 
will comply with any and all statutes, rules, regulations and other laws then in effect 
which govern the sale of such land to any non-governmental entity.” 

Section 4. The Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption as provided by law. 

Adopted this 28th day of February 2017, by roll call vote: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 
 

Steve Gaines, President 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 

Lisa Sheppard, Secretary 

 

 
 
 



(SEAL) 

STATE OF ILLINOIS) 
SS.  

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE 

I, Lisa Sheppard, do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park Commis-
sioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I am 
keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and, 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of: 
 

RESOLUTION No. 858 
A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION #636 AND AMENDING THE 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT POLICY ON THE SALE OF PARK DISTRICT 

LAND TO A NON-GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 28th 
day of February 2017. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance 
with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and 
with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that 
the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and said Code and with all 
of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 28th day of February 2017. 

 
 
     
Lisa Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners 

          Glencoe Park District 
 

4830-9008-8000, v.  1 



IX. Action Item G

Approval of Third Party Construction on Park
District Property Policy

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glenc

To: B

From: L

SUBJEC

The attac
policy wa
protects t
Glencoe

Chair Pal
agreemen

Action N

coe Park Distric

Board of Com

Lisa Sheppard

CT:  Policy o

ched policy a
as written by
the Park Dis
Park Distric

latnik forwa
nt from com

Needed:  Mot

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners

d, Executive

n Third Part

addresses Th
y Ancel Glin
strict in the e
ct Land. 

arded the pol
mmittee memb

tion to appro

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

ty Constructi

hird Party Co
nk, in cooper
event the Dis

licy for appro
bers Brooks

ove the Polic

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

ion on Park 

onstruction o
ration with s
strict would 

oval at the F
s and Gaines

cy   

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

District Prop

on Park Dist
staff and com
like to allow

February Boa
.

5-3030 / fax (

perty 

trict Property
mmissioners
w such constr

ard meetings

847) 835-4942

Date:  2/1

y.  This new
.  It ensures 
ruction on 

s, as is, with

2

15/17

w
and

h



Glencoe Park District 
Third Party Construction on Park District Property Policy 

New Proposed Policy (Not Approved): February 28, 2017 

 1.0 Statement of Purpose 
The Board of Park Commissioners finds it may be of benefit to the residents of 
Glencoe to permit Glencoe not-for-profit organizations to construct 
improvements on Park District property and to donate the improvement project to 
the Park District. The following Guidelines have been established related to the 
Park District’s acceptance of such improvements. 

2.0 General Guidelines 
A copy of these guidelines will be made available to prospective not-for profit 
donors when requested. 

2.1 Notwithstanding any other Glencoe Park District policy or ordinance, 
construction of any facility, building, structure, or other improvement on Park 
District property by any third party is expressly prohibited unless authorized by a 
written agreement approved by the affirmative vote of no fewer than four (4) 
member of the Board of Park Commissioners. 

2.2 The Board will consider partnerships for construction of improvements on Park 
District property by Glencoe not-for-profit organizations.  The organization must 
be currently recognized as a not-for-profit organization by the Internal Revenue 
Service and the Illinois Secretary of State and must have been in good standing 
with those agencies for a minimum of ten (10) consecutive years.  Further, the 
organization must have a significant relationship to the Glencoe Park District 
community.  A significant relationship with the Park District community can be 
demonstrated by meeting one of the following: 

A.  Having a membership of which 55% or more reside within the corporate 
limits of the Park District; or 

B.  Having a charter or other official recognition by a parent state or national 
organization that designates it as a Glencoe chapter. 

2.3    Any Agreement entered into between the Park District and a not-for-profit 
organization to authorize construction of improvements in accordance with this 
policy will contain, but is not limited to, the following provisions:   
A.  The improvement must be available for public use. 
B.  The final design plans for the improvements must be approved by an 

affirmative vote of no fewer than four (4) members of the Board of Park 
Commissioners.



C.  Design and construction of the improvements must comply with all applicable 
Glencoe Park District, Village of Glencoe, County, State, and Federal laws, 
rules, regulations, and ordinances. 

D.  The Park District Board and staff, in cooperation with the not-for-profit 
organization, will determine an expected useful life for the improvements.  
The not-for profit organization will be required to fund an endowment for 
maintenance of the improvements for the expected useful life of the project.  

E. The Park District will not guarantee that the improvements will remain on 
Park District property in perpetuity.  At the end of the projected useful life of 
the improvements, the Board of Park Commissioners will determine whether 
the improvements are of value and interest to the Park District and the 
community.  If the Board determines that the improvements are no longer of 
value or interest to the Park District and the community, the not-for –profit 
organization may be given an opportunity to restore/replace the 
improvements, or the Park District may, in the sole discretion of the Board, 
remove the improvements.  

F.   The Park District is the sole owner of improvements constructed on Park 
District property.  Authorization for construction of improvements on Park 
District property does not grant to any third party any ownership interest in 
the improvements or any property interest in any Park District property. 

G.  The Board of Park Commissioners may select and engage; (i) an independent 
architect or contractor to review cost estimates for the design and construction 
of the improvements; and (ii) a contractor who is knowledgeable in 
Americans with Disabilities Act requirements for public facilities to provide 
an opinion on accessibility requirements for the improvements.  The selection 
of any such contractors will be at the sole discretion of the Board and the 
related costs will be paid by the not-for-profit organization.

H.  The not-for-profit organization and its contractors will be required to provide 
insurance coverage for the project as required by the Park District and the 
Park District Risk Management Agency and will be required to indemnify 
and hold harmless the Park District and its elected, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers. 

I.   The not-for-profit organization will be required to establish a design 
committee for the improvements.  The Park District Executive Director or her 
designee will be a member of the design committee and will be provided 
access to all plans and drawings.  The Park District Executive Director or her 
designee will be granted access to the construction site during the 
construction of the improvements. 

J.  The Board of Park Commissioners, with input from Park District staff, will 
develop a construction timetable.  The timetable will be monitored by the 
Park District Executive Director or her designee and monthly reports will be 
provided to the Board. 

K.  The not-for-profit organization will be responsible for investigating all 
environmental issues and concerns and will pay all costs associated with any 
required environmental remediation. 



L.  Prior to the beginning of construction of the improvements, the Park District 
will require the not-for-profit to: (i) submit to the Park District a surety bond 
in an amount determined by the Board of Park Commissioners; and (ii) 
deposit in escrow an amount determined by the Board of Park Commissioners 
as a construction contingency.  The Park District will conduct a final 
inspection of the improvements prior to acceptance of the improvements.  If 
any of the construction elements fail to meet the approved plans and 
specifications, the not-for-profit organization will be required to cause those 
construction elements to be remedied.  If necessary, the construction 
contingency held in escrow may be used to pay for the remedies.  Any 
amount remaining in the construction contingency escrow account thirty (30) 
days after the Park District’s acceptance of the improvements will be returned 
to the not-for-profit organization. 

M.  The not-for-profit organization will be required to pay all costs related to the 
improvements, including, but not limited to design, construction, testing fees, 
utility connection fees, and attorneys’ fees. 

N.  Prior to the start of construction of the improvements, the not-for profit 
organization will be required to submit to the Park District a minimum of 
three (3) written references for each contractor or subcontractor proposed to 
perform work on the improvements.  The Park District will have the right to 
reject any contractors for whom satisfactory references are not provided.

3.0 Methods of Providing for Recognition of Donations and Naming/Re-Naming 
Rights
Recognition of improvements constructed on Park District property in accordance 
with this policy and the rights to naming or re-naming of the improvements and/or 
the park or facility in which the improvements are located shall be governed by the 
Glencoe Park District Policy on Gifts and Donations.    

4837-4801-7215, v.  1 



IX. Action Item H

Approval of Upgrade IT TSS Plan

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting













IX. Action Item I

Approval of the revised Fund Balance Policy

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glenc

To: B

From: C

SUBJEC

The Boar
was upda
allowing
“committ
of our ma

Over the 
unstable
Glencoe,
Recreatio
from our
as the fun

This poli
guideline
Staff has

Addition
to be tran
recomme
freeze, as

Given tha
beach sea
kindergar
be made 
will still 
Funds, w
was com
again loo

Staff reco
both be a

coe Park Distric

Board of Park

Carol Mensin

CT:  Update o

rd first appro
ated again on
excess fund

ted” for even
aster plan pr

past five ye
economic st

, staff has inf
on Fund to m
audit firm, L

nd balance ta

icy is being p
e in the Recr
also taken t

nally, you ma
nsferred to F
endation in 2
s well the ac

at the actual
ason and the
rten, staff fe
before the fi
allow the Di

while at the sa
mitted in Jul

ok to transfer

ommends th
approved by 

ct / 999 Green

k Commissio

nger and Lisa

of Fund Bala

oved the Dis
ne year later
d balance res
ntual transfe
rojects. 

ars, due to th
tate of the St
formally use

match the Co
Lauterbach &
argeted guid

presented to 
reation Fund
this time to c

ay recall that
Fund 69 in th
2015 was ver
ctual decision

 fund balanc
e fact that oth
eels confiden
fiscal year en
istrict to mee
ame time all
ly 2016. Fur
r excess fund

hat the attach
the Board a

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

oners

a Sheppard

ance Policy/

strict’s first F
r in 2012.  It 
serves in Cor
er to the Mas

he continuin
tate of Illino
ed a more co
orporate Fun
& Amen, the

deline with th

you now to 
d to be 50% o
clarify other 

t in July 201
he current FY
ry conservat
n by District

ce reserves lo
her District p
nt that an add
nds (the day 
et the 50% t
low for addit
rther, after th
d balance to 

hed Fund Bal
s presented.

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

Additional C

Fund Balanc
has been a v

rporate (10) 
ster Plan Cap

ng threat of a
is and the po

onservative 5
nd.  Per recen
ey are seeing
heir clients, 

officially an
of annual ex
minor word

5 that the B
Y16/17 for m
tive due to bo
t 35 to finally

ook to be mu
programs he
ditional com
of the regula
argeted guid
tional monie
he annual FY
Fund 69. 

lance Policy

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

Commitmen

ce Policy in A
very helpful 
and Recreat

pital Project

a potential pr
ossibility of 
50% fund ba
nt discussion
g 50% becom
especially w

nd formally r
xpenditures, r
ding in this p

oard commi
master plan p
oth the poten
y implement

uch better du
elped ease th
mmitment o
ar board mee
deline in both
es to be adde
Y16/17 audi

y and related

5-3030 / fax (

Date: F

nt of Reserve

August of 20
guide for sta

tion (25) Fun
s Fund (69) 

roperty tax f
full day kind

alance guidel
n with the re
ming more o

with their mu

raise the targ
rather than t

policy at this 

itted a total o
projects.  Th
ntial for the 
t full-day kin

ue to the rec
he impact of 
of fund balan
eting on Feb
h Corporate 
ed to the $1.
it is complet

d Commitme

847) 835-4942

February 20, 

es

011, and the
aff and Boar
nds to be 
for the fund

freeze, the 
dergarten in
line with the
presentative

of a norm as 
unicipal clien

geted minim
the current 2
 time. 

of only $400
he staff 

property tax
ndergarten.

cord-setting
the full-day 

nce reserves 
bruary 28). T

and Recreat
3 million tha

ted, staff wil

nt Resolutio

2

2017

en it 
rd in 

ding

n
e
e

far
nts.

mum 
25%.

0,000

x

can
This
tion
at
l

on



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

FUND BALANCE POLICY 

Approved: December 2011 
Revised: August 2012 

Prosposed Revision: February 2017

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to establish fund balance classifications that 
establish a hierarchy based on the extent to which the Park District must observe 
constraints imposed upon use of the resources that are reported by the 
governmental funds. More detailed fund balance financial reporting and the 
increased disclosures will aid the user of the financial statements in understanding 
the availability of resources.  

The fund balance will be composed of three primary categories: 1) Nonspendable 
Fund Balance, 2) Restricted Fund Balance and 3) Unrestricted Fund Balance. 

DEFINITIONS 

Governmental Funds – are used to account for all or most of the Park District’s 
general activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies 
(special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general capital assets 
(capital projects funds) and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service 
funds). The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the Park District 
not accounted for in some other fund. 

Fund Balance – the difference between assets and liabilities in a Governmental 
Fund. 

Nonspendable Fund Balance – the portion of a Governmental Fund’s net assets 
that are not available to be spent, either short-term or long-term, in either form or 
through legal restrictions (e.g., inventories, prepaid items). 

Restricted Fund Balance - the portion of a Governmental Fund’s net assets that 
are subject to external enforceable legal restrictions (e.g., grantor, contributors 
and property tax levies). 

Unrestricted Fund Balance is made up of three components: 

Committed Fund Balance - the portion of a Governmental Fund’s net assets 
with self-imposed constraints or limitations that have been placed at the 
highest level of decision making.   

Assigned Fund Balance - the portion of a Governmental Fund’s net assets 
to denote an intended use of resources (e.g. Medical Insurance Reserve). 

Formatted: Left:  1.25", Right:  1.25"



 2

Unassigned Fund Balance - available expendable financial resources in a 
governmental fund that are not the object of tentative management plan (i.e. 
assignments). Unassigned fund balance should exist only in the General 
Fund; for all other governmental funds, unassigned fund balance may only 
be reported in the case of a deficit fund balance position.

FUND BALANCE PHILOSOPHY 

It is the Park District’s philosophy to support long-term financial strategies, where 
fiscal sustainability is its first priority, while also building funds for future growth
and maintenance of capital infrastructure.  It is essential to maintain adequate 
levels of fund balance to mitigate current and future risks (e.g., revenue shortfalls 
and unanticipated expenditures), and to ensure stable tax rates and to maintain 
current bond rating.. Fund balance levels are also a crucial consideration in long-
term financial planning. 

SCOPE

This policy establishes the hierarchy of fund balance and provides for the 
minimum amount of fund balance each governmental fund should maintain. 
Credit rating agencies carefully monitor levels of fund balance and unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund to evaluate the Park District’s continued 
creditworthiness. 

MINIMUM FUND BALANCE LEVELS

This Policy applies to the Park District’s governmental funds as follows:   

A. General Fund - The General Fund is a major fund and the general operating 
fund of the Park District. It is used to account for administrative, maintenance, 
parks, and greenhouse, Watts Ice, and Beach operations, and all financial 
resources except those that are accounted for in another fund. 

1. Each year a portion of the spendable fund balance will be determined as 
follows: 

a. Committed – A portion of the fund balance may be committed 
through formal action of the Board of Commissioners either 
through a resolution or ordinance.  

b. Assigned – Fiscal Sustainability. This assigned fund balance will 
be maintained targeted at a minimum level of 2550% of annual 
budgeted expenditures. This will be adjusted annually with the 
adoption of the annual budget and is calculated at a minimum of 
three six months (2550%) of expenditures not including capital, 
debt service and interfund transfers. 



 3

c. Unassigned – The unassigned fund balance will be reviewed 
annually during the budget process.  Balances in excess of the six 
months (50%) of annual budgeted expenditures may be transferred 
to the Capital Projects Fund to support future capital projects. 

B. Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and 
report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 
Financing for most special revenue funds is provided by a specific annual 
property tax levy.  In some cases, financing is received from admissions, fees 
and charges for programs and activities.  These proceeds are devoted 
exclusively to the purposes of which the special tax was authorized.  Fund 
balances in special revenue funds (other than the Recreation Fund) are derived 
from property taxes and are therefore legally restricted to the purpose of the 
fund.   

1. Recreation - This fund is a major fund and is used exclusively for planning, 
establishing, and maintaining recreational programs carried out by the Park 
District. Financing is provided from fees and charges for programs and 
activities and an annual property tax levy.  

Each year a portion of the spendable fund balance will be determined as 
follows: 

i.Committed – A portion of the fund balance may be committed 
through formal action of the Board of Commissioners either through 
a resolution or ordinance. 

ii.a,  The remaining restricted fund balance for this fund will be
targeted targeted at a minimum level of 2550% of annual budgeted 
expenditures. This will be adjusted annually with the adoption of the 
annual budget and is calculated at a minimum of three six months 
(2550%) of expenditures not including capital, debt service and 
interfund transfers. 

ii.b.  Committed – A portion of the fund balance may be committed 
through formal action of the Board of Commissioners either through 
a resolution or ordinance.

2. NSSRA Special Recreation Fund - This fund is a non-major fund and 
established to account for revenues derived from a specific annual property 
tax levy and expenditures of these monies to the North Suburban Special 
Recreation Association, to provide special recreation programs for the 
physically and mentally handicapped. 

The targeted restricted fund balance of the NSSRA Special Recreation 
Fund Fund shall be calculated as follows: 

i. The restricted fund balance for this fund will be targeted at a 
minimum level of 25% of annual budgeted expenditures. This will 
be adjusted annually with the adoption of the annual budget and is 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.38",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



 4

calculated at a minimum of three months (25%) of expenditures 
not including capital, debt service and interfund transfers. 

3. Retirement/Pension Fund - The Retirement/Pension Fund is a non-major 
fund and accounts for the activities resulting from the Park District’s 
participation in Social Security/Medicare and the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund. Revenues are provided by a specific annual property tax 
levy which produces a sufficient amount to pay the Park District’s 
contributions on behalf of the Park District’s employees. Fund balances in 
this fund are derived from property taxes and are therefore legally 
restricted to the purpose of the fund.   

The targeted restricted fund balance of the Retirement/Pension Fund shall 
be calculated as follows:                                         

i. The remaining restricted fund balance for this fund will be targeted 
at a minimum level of 25% of annual budgeted expenditures. This 
will be adjusted annually with the adoption of the annual budget 
and is calculated at a minimum of three months (25%) of 
expenditures not including capital, debt service and interfund 
transfers. 

4. Audit Fund - This fund is a non-major fund and accounts for the 
expenditures related to the Park District’s annual financial compliance 
audit which is mandated by State statute. Financing is provided from an 
annual property tax levy, the proceeds of which can only be used for this 
purpose. Fund balances in this fund are derived from property taxes and are 
therefore legally restricted to the purpose of the fund.   

The targeted restricted fund balance of the Audit Fund shall be calculated 
as follows: 

i. The restricted fund balance for this fund will be targeted at a 
minimum level of 25% of annual budgeted expenditures. This will 
be adjusted annually with the adoption of the annual budget and is 
calculated at a minimum of three months (25%) of expenditures 
not including capital, debt service and interfund transfers. 

5. Liability Insurance Fund/Workers Comp Fund- These funds are non-major 
funds and account for the operation of the Park District’s insurance and risk 
management activities. Financing is provided from an annual property tax 
levy. These funds record the insurance expenditures. 

The targeted restricted fund balance of the Liability Insurance Fund and 
Workers Comp Fund shall be calculated as follows: 



 5

i. The restricted fund balance for this fund will be targeted at a 
minimum level of 25% of annual budgeted expenditures. This will 
be adjusted annually with the adoption of the annual budget and is 
calculated at a minimum of three months (25%) of expenditures 
not including capital, debt service and interfund transfers. 

C. Debt Service Fund - This fund is a major fund and was established to 
account for financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to 
expenditure for principal and interest.   

The Park District levies an amount based on the principal and interest that is 
anticipated to be paid per the outstanding bond ordinances filed with the 
County. The County then adds a 5% “loss” amount . Any fund balance 
accumulation should be  minimal, not less than 15% and not more than 25%.. 
.  Fund balances in this fund are derived from property taxes and are therefore 
legally restricted to the purpose of the fund. In instances where fund balance 
level exceeds 25%, the Board may consider the option of abating a portion of 
the Debt Service levy amount.  

D. Capital Projects Fund – This fund is a major fund established to account for 
and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to 
expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of 
capital facilities and other capital assets. 

This fund’s fund balance will be considered restricted, committed, or assigned 
depending on the intended source/use of the funds. 

FLOW ASSUMPTIONS

Some projects (funds) are funded by a variety of resources, including both 
restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned).  The Park 
District’s flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest 
level of constraint are expended first.  If restricted or unrestricted funds are 
available for spending, the restricted funds are spent first.  If different levels of 
unrestricted funds are available for spending, the Park District considers 
committed funds to be expended first followed by assigned and, lastly, unassigned 
funds. 

AUTHORITY

A self-imposed constraint on spending the fund balance (Committed Fund 
Balance) must be approved by ordinance or resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners.  Any modifications or removal of the self-imposed constraint 
must use the same action used to commit the fund balance.   

Formal action to commit fund balance must occur before the end of the fiscal 
year.  The dollar amount of the commitment can be determined after year end
when the annual audit is complete..



 6

Authority for designating fund balance as assigned is delegated by the Board of 
Commissioners to the Executive Director and Director of Finance/HR.

Typically, the formal resolution to commit funds is approved by the Board in July 
after the annual audit for the previously completed fiscal year is presented and 
approved by the Board. The interfund transfers are then budgeted and completed 
in the following fiscal year budget.

MONITORING MINIMUM FUND BALANCE LEVELS 

Park District management staff will monitor revenue collection and available cash 
by reviewing monthly financial reports.  During the year, if there is an 
expectation that fund balance levels will not be met by the end of the fiscal year, 
the Executive Director may review all projected operational and capital 
expenditures with the management team, and accordingly, present a plan to the 
Board of Park Commissioners for a modification of  goals and projects 
established in the adopted budget. 



IX. Action Item J

Approval of Resolution No. 859 to Commit  
Additional Funds to Master Plan Capital  

Project Fund (69)

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 859 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE COMMITMENT OF $300,000 OF THE CORPORATE 
FUND BALANCE AND $100,000 OF THE RECREATION FUND BALANCE
FOR FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Glencoe Park 
District, has a Fund Balance Policy which was adopted by the Board in December 2011 
and amended in August 2012 and again in February 2017; 

WHEREAS, the District has more than the 50% required fund balance reserve in 
the Corporate Fund of the District and more than 50% required fund balance reserve in 
the Recreation Fund; and

WHEREAS, as the District has completed its master plan process which identifies 
future capital needs of the District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It and It is Hereby Ordained by the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois that 

Section 1 In the current Fiscal Year 2016/2017, the Park District will 
designate an additional amount of $300,000 in the Corporate Fund and an additional 
$100,000 in the Recreation Fund as “committed fund balance” to be used specifically for 
“Future Capital Projects of the District,” as specifically outline in the Master Plan. 

Section 2 The Resolution shall be in full force and effect form after its 
adoption as provided by law.

ADOPTED this 28th day of February 2017 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

 AYES: 
 NAYS:
 ABSTENTIONS: 

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: 

Lisa M. Brooks, Treasurer 
Board of Park Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners 

[SEAL]



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. 859: 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE COMMITMENT OF $300,000 OF THE CORPORATE 
FUND BALANCE AND $100,000 OF THE RECREATION FUND BALANCE

FOR FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 28th

day of February 2017. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 28th day of February 2017. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL]



IX. Action Item K

Approval for Architectural Services of
Wight and Company

Glencoe Park District
February 28 Board Meeting



Glenc

To: 
From: 

SUBJEC

As you k
that staff
9, 2017.
evaluated

FGM Arc
Architect
Wight &

After rev
their refe
This is ba
While all
projects o
house inc
estimator

We will h
flooring,
cosmetic
work for 

Recomm
Wight an
stalls, an

coe Park Distric

  Board of C
  Lisa Shepp

CT:  Architec

know, the Pa
f had previou

Staff memb
d the submis

chitects 
tural Consul
Company 

view of the su
erence check
ased on Wig
l the consult
of this scope
cluding an el
rs, and proje

have Wight 
doors, railin
/ADA upgra
a second sh

mendation:  A
nd Company
d front desk 

ct / 999 Green

Commission
pard, Execut

ct Recommen

rk District re
usly experien
bers Lisa She
ssions based

lting Group (

ubmissions,
ks.  After rev
ght’s experie
ing firms we

e. The firm h
lectrical eng

ect managers

and Compan
ng, IT servic
ades to a sho
hower area to

Approval of a
y for Architec

reconfigura

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

ers 
tive Director

ndation

equested RF
nce with. RF
eppard, Chri
on complete

(ACG)

staff intervi
view of the q
ence with cor
ere of high q
has all the re
gineer, interio
s. Our point o

ny do the de
ces, carpentry
ower area. Th
o determine i

a motion to a
ctural Servic

ation not to e

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

r

FP’s for the T
FP’s were ret
is Leiner, Mi
eness and re

iewed Wight
qualifications
rporate fitne

quality, Wigh
quired speci
or designer, 
of contact fo

sign work fo
y, mirrors, e
he Committe
if the cost is

approve staf
ces for the T
exceed $30,0

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

Takiff Fitnes
turned to the
ike Lushniak
levance.  Ve

t and Compa
s, we recomm

ess areas and
ht had partic
ialties for de
building arc

or this projec

or the fitness
electrical, fur
ee also recom
s feasible to c

ff entering in
Takiff Fitness
000.

5-3030 / fax (

ss Area from
e Park Distri
k and Paul G
endors that s

any and was
mend Wight

d projects of 
cular experie
esign and con
chitects, AD
ct will be Bo

s area, which
rnishings, lo
mmended in
construct.   

nto a contrac
s Area, two 

847) 835-4942

2/20/

m three provi
ict by Februa
Goedjen
submitted:

 pleased wit
t & Compan
similar scop

ence with 
nstruction in
A experts, c

ob Ijams.

h includes 
ockers, and 
ncluding desi

ct with 
shower

2

/2017

iders
ary

th
ny.
pe.

n-
cost 

ign


	Agenda
	Minutes of December 7, 2016 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting
	Minutes of January 17, 2017 Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting
	Minutes of January 17, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes of January 31, 2017 Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting
	Minutes of February 13, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting
	Minutes of February 21, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting
	Surplus Property Disposal Ordinance No. 857
	Voucher List of Bills
	Financial Report
	Follow up to Finance Comm of the Whole Meeting
	Business Report
	Recreation and Facilities Report
	Parks and Facilities Maintenance Report
	Marketing/Communications Report
	Minutes of February 15, 2017 Safety Committee Meeting
	Executive Director's Report
	FY2016/17 Goals
	IAPD/IPRA Conference Summary Reports
	Press Release - Professional of the Year
	GYS/SNAP Stipend Request
	GJHP Stipend Request
	West & Astor Playground Designs
	Resolution No. 858 Policy on Sale of District Land to Non-Gov't Entity
	Policy on Third Party Construction on District Property
	Upgrade Excalibur TSS Plan
	Fund Balance Policy
	Resolution 859: Transfer Funds to Capital Projects Fund 69
	Architectual Services

